


H#k CONTENTS

15

16

48

66

73

74

76

77

79

174

175

176

178

NS

Overview of the Company

EEREE

Chairman’s Statement

£E EERSREBABZEEEALR

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

EEEWE |
Supervisory Committee’s Report
FEQWE

Directors'Report

TEE RS
Corporate Governance Report

BB AR
Independent Auditor’'s Report

BAENREMIERSR
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

A BB RS S
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A ERBER -
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EARERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RIS IRA M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M HE

Financial Summary

— B FENESBHE
Proposal for Appropriation of Profit for the Year of
2017

BRREFAGEE
Notice of Annual General Meeting

NAER

Corporate Information



G
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

FEER PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

BERAERBAERARTARRDEEWEA Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
A(AREED)ETENFLEERBEER TR “Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
A hA . EARAE C KRB - ZIEEE medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose vehicles and

LA RS Th B - FTAARSEEEERE diesel and petrol engines. All of the production facilities of the Group are
HEEEPEARLMBA(HH]) - AEEZ located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and substantially all
BRIBMIHENEPBEEE - NAFEA - AE the sales of the Group are also made in the PRC. The Group had export
ENMERBAARLHOHE  ESBhASERF sales to Japan during the year, which accounted for approximately 0.05%

EHEEEA0.05% © of the Group's turnover for the year.
LFIRMI AR NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—8  AEEBRTA The Group had 2,813 employees as at 31 December 2017.
HA2,813A °
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ESERME
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 for your review.

2017 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company sold 50,379
vehicles, an increase of 4.6% over 48,166 vehicles sold last year.
Revenue was RMB5,073 million, an increase of 9.5% over RMB4,634
million as recorded last year. Profit after tax was RMB502 million, an
increase of 3.2% over RMB486 million as recorded last year.

.  REVIEW OF OPERATION

The year 2017 witnessed accelerated technology upgrading in
commercial vehicle sector and automobile sector, intensified
homogeneous competition, increasingly stringent emission and
safety regulations, rapid development of new energy and intelligent
vehicles and increased operating pressures of businesses. Against
such context, the Company strove to shore up and improve
its business operations while implementing mid-term reform,
innovation and development projects. Meanwhile, the Company
achieved “Standard V" conformity on the complete series while
planning for and carrying out R&D on “Standard VI" products in
advance. At the same time, the Company continued to promote
the marketing of its hit products (i.e. light-duty trucks) while
striving to develop market for its high-end products (i.e. heavy-
duty trucks). Besides, the Company continued to expand the value
chain of traditional fuel vehicles within life cycle while keeping an
eye on environmental protection and energy conservation policies
and launching the deployment of new energy vehicle business.
Moreover, the Company strove to set up frameworks, processes
and systems for its major segments internally and consolidate
its partnerships with multiple parties externally. Thanks to these
efforts, the Company has achieved good results and strengthened
its growth momentum.

B8R A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Initial launch of GIGA heavy-duty vehicle in Shanghai in April

2017
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Initial success was achieved in strengthening product
innovation. Firstly, the Company established an integrated
R&D system, covering a system for auto sector-related
regulations and circulars, an R&D system for light, medium
and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks and new energy
vehicles, a powertrain R&D system and a trial production
department and test center system. Secondly, the Company
rapidly expanded the specifications of Standard V vehicles to
support marketing and take back market share. Thirdly, the
Company launched a group of new vehicles to the market,
such as heavy-duty vehicles GIGA and new TAG/A pick-up
trucks. Fourthly, given that its Standard V vehicles fell behind
in development, the Company managed to speed up the
development of Standard VI vehicles. It introduced the Isuzu
Standard VI engines to upgrade existing engines. Finally, the
Company formulated a medium-term product plan to push
ahead with product development in an orderly manner, which
was the initial form of its “three-batch” integrated product
R&D and launch mechanism.

20175 12ATAGAE R E™
Launch of TAGA pick-up truck in December 2017
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Sales volume and business foundation were enhanced
and new change was seen in marketing efforts. Firstly, the
Company developed and implemented targeted policies to
regain market share and stabilize sales volume. In particular,
the Company devoted great efforts to driving the sales of
Standard IV vehicles to clear inventory on the one hand, and
promoted sanitation, airport and firefighting refitting factories
to apply Qingling Standard V chassis in advance on the other
hand. In addition, the Company systematically planned to
launch heavy-duty vehicles and new pickups, laying a good
foundation for the expansion in sales in 2018. Secondly, the
Company reinforced its marketing management. Through
launch of the DMS information system, the Company
enhanced its warehouse management and market research,
strengthened the collaborative capabilities of its market
and development, production, quality control, planning and
procurement departments and improved its after-sales
service and overall marketing capability.

Internal quality, cost, and delivery (QCD) management
was enhanced to increase the competitiveness of
products and marketing. Firstly, delivery performance
was improved by production system, and the Time and
Assessment Standards for Key Link of Delivery Date of
Commercial Vehicle was formulated and issued. Over the
past year, we have done a lot of work on improving the
efficiency of production system, resulting in a noticeable
increase in the rate of on-time delivery of vehicles and
customer satisfaction. Secondly, the Company reinforced
the initial flow management of GIGA heavy-duty trucks to
strengthen quality control and rectifications, which helped
stabilize product quality and consolidate the foundation for
quality control — which was essential to the Company. Thirdly,
the Company adopted multiple measures to reduce costs and
increase profits, and managed to reduce procurement costs
and increase capital management gains through enhancing
cost control.

B8R AR DB BR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Mechanism reform was deepened to spur inherent
vitality. Firstly, the Company adopted an effective innovation
incentive mechanism to stimulate its inherent vitality.
The Company implemented the Rules on Incentives for
New Product Development Projects and the Management
Measures on Technological Innovation and Management
Innovation to stimulate employees’ passion for innovation.
Secondly, the Company improved its internal control system
and standardized risk management and control over external
production and operations and significant decisions. Thirdly,
the Company embarked on innovation in human resource
management with a primary focus on compensation and
benefits and talent recruitment, thereby reinforcing its
human resources management system. Fourthly, information
construction was accelerated with dealership management
system (DMS) and office automation (OA) system being
launched, which helped improve the Company’s management
practices.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

China’s economy has entered a new era, transitioning from a
phase of rapid growth to a stage of high-quality development.
Regarding supply-side structural reform as its main task, the
Chinese government has been pursuing for better quality, higher
efficiency, and more robust drivers of economic growth through
reform while advancing law-based governance in all fields. All this
has produced a profound impact on the development and reform
of the commercial vehicle sector in China. Thus it is imperative for
the Company to deepen its reform, step up innovation and make
practical efforts on a continuing basis to move forward. To this end,
the Company has set the following major tasks for 2018:

1.

Enhance product competitiveness step by step. The
Company will ensure orderly and effective operation of
its “three-batch” integrated product R&D and launch
mechanism, so as to ensure the implementation of the plan
of “one batch ready for sale”, “one batch under research”
and “one batch in the pipeline”. Furthermore, it will speed
up the development of new energy vehicle business to
achieve substantive breakthroughs in terms of manufacturing
qualifications, product launch and the building of professional
teams.
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Improve marketing competitiveness in a systematic
manner. The Company will strengthen customer analysis
and research and development services and enhance the
supporting roles of after-sales services and financial services
to marketing and sales through standardizing marketing
network construction, support and management. Taking
the establishment and improvement of a specialized market
research plan, market-oriented business and financial policies,
normalized multi-level training program and differentiated
incentive and restraint mechanism as its main tasks, the
Company will continue to modernize its marketing efforts and
enhance marketing competitiveness in a systematic manner,
so as to enhance marketing network, customer base and
sales team.

Constantly improve product quality, cost, and delivery
(QCD) to support market expansion. The Company will
further improve its production efficiency and manufacturing
quality by making quick efforts to unlock production
bottlenecks and speedily enhance its capabilities for
production and delivery of new products. Meanwhile, the
Company will accelerate the implementation of major
technical renovation related to product quality, safety
and environment protection and production capability. It
will set up a fast delivery mechanism for special-purpose
vehicles, modified vehicles and vehicles with individualized
configurations and enhanced 4M1H management at basic
level to ensure quality and quantity and satisfy market
demand in a timely manner. In addition, the Company will
make greater efforts to enhance quality control, implement
more rigid and refined cost control and speed up key
technical renovations, so as to further consolidate its
production capability.

B8R AR DB BR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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4. Deepen reform of market-oriented mechanisms. Firstly,
the Company will further deepen the reform of innovation
mechanisms to create a Qingling product innovation circle
featuring integrated innovation, collaborative innovation
and open innovation, increase incentives to innovation
projects that have originality, invention and prominent
economic benefits and devote efforts to fostering technical
cadres, young technicians and high-caliber innovation
teams, ensuring continuous improvement of innovation
mechanisms. Secondly, the Company will expedite
information construction and further optimize its existing
systems to establish product life-cycle management system
and enterprise resource planning management system,
thereby shortening development cycle and reducing product
cost through improving management efficiency and level
by means of information technology. Thirdly, the Company
will pursue human resources reform in an all-round way,
including optimizing its compensation and benefit system and
performance appraisal system in line with industry trends and
establishing a specialized system for recruiting professionals
and training and development systems for all types of
employees.

In the coming year, the Company shall renew its efforts to forge
ahead. In this regard, it will follow a market-oriented approach,
endeavor to accomplish every task and make new breakthroughs,
thereby securing a rapid and sound growth of its business and
delivering ever better returns to investors.

23 March 2018



55 ESKeREEAEBZBERAER

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EF

BFERTE 485 BT —RFT-A
_‘1—_ REER/RARANITES EFK-

FMZEeXRBRRERZEGIENKE -
&EC ANZERILRERETIZERBEE - 2
SHERBTIREE - RIEET  BRLETN
—ET)\FREEMBABSHERANEE
B¥ - RNKRBEEERERES - HEEE
ﬁ%L BICRUF RS - BEERHER

—HISRETE]  MEER - EEESIREAS

:“’i%“ BREEREZRIEIE - —FEER
BIEE - MR R REGA T EIFEIME -
BR_EZNFEARRRGLIF - £&D
FRIBEEFRRBA AR - ARFTERR
Fﬁéfqmi(‘il)ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ}m%%;‘%J)EEIJ%'@%&“
B TEBRLEE YR BEAEE  E0
RZZE—RFNLHA ﬁfi%ﬁ%%@%%&%%ﬁ
B o BELE DL IGHIBINHE - BREBBRRT
WEASHABNEERESREIISE - A
AREHERRRABNEE - BE - FR% - ZH
FEBIE - %ﬁf‘ﬁiﬁa:?—ﬁilﬁlﬂi‘é:;
—RE+-AZTHEHRERE TR (ER) %Y
BAERARERER -

BEE—BREE 605 B - HERA
—+NABEEAEER T%ﬂﬁ%?&ﬂi%%
FEZE—RAF+— A+ BEEAARFLE
B o FEENARERERDAELXEZR -
R—AN—FEAMARTETERRA A
R+ RETHRIBE=1TF  TET
BIEEARSHELEZEZTIR  BREEZE
EEEHE  BRCEEEENR - S22
£ MKTZERCVibElefm & « 18 B &5
5 BEEEBRAACELRITES - 8
BEZSN\RBENDRITEE - RPTEEIM
SIS SUERAL o BB ARBET R+
ﬁAZ%i‘%iﬂﬂ&éM&ﬁﬁ%iWﬁ@%%%ﬁ
GfEEE  WER T —TFE T —UFIE
EEH £+ﬁ%§%)é’§§b$§%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ?2%ﬂ%$
ﬁ °

DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang, aged 48, has been an executive director, the
Chairman, a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company since 22
December 2016. He graduated from Beijing Agricultural Engineering
University (bR BEE TR AE) in 1992, specialized in Construction
and Environmental Engineering (28R T#2) with a Bachelor's
degree in engineering. Mr. LUO also completed and graduated from an
undergraduate program in Chongging Normal University (& Efi§5 A E2)
in 2008, majoring in Accounting. He joined the Company after obtaining
his Bachelor's degree and has a consecutive 24-year experience in
the car industry. At the early stage, Mr. LUO underwent an internship
at the Assemble Workshop (#2#£ ), Repair Workshop ({8 R),
Infrastructure Department (Z#=B) and Procurement Department (££
f§3F) of the Company. Later he was the Deputy Head of the Planning
and Construction Department (}R 213220 &85 &), Deputy Head of
Secondary Pressing Vehicles Workshop (=& BEE & 8] ={F), Deputy
Head of the Finance Department (/%3 &/E8&) and Deputy Head of
the Integrated Planning Department (434 52|28 &IZ8 ). In 2009, he
joined the Management team of the Company and was the Deputy Chief
Economist and the Head of Procurement Department (&I|424% 75D 3 £7
BEEBEK), and the Deputy General Manager of Qingling Motors (Group)
Company Limited (“Qingling Group”), the substantial Shareholder of the
Company, responsible for the production, logistics, domestic support and
import, etc.. He took up the post of the Director and the General Manager
of Qingling Group in September 2016. Mr. LUO studied abroad for
several times, including the Advanced Course in Corporate Governance
organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Studies on Special Topics such as production, quality, development
and sales organized by Japan Isuzu. Mr. LUO has been the Chairman of
the Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. from April 2015 to 30
November 2016.

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI, aged 60, has been an executive director and
the vice chairman of the Company since 28 May 2015 and has been the
general manager of the Company since 16 November 2015. He graduated
from the Faculty of Law of Keio University, Japan. He joined Isuzu in
April 1981 and has been working at Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”) for
over 30 years. He served in a number of positions, including the manager
in charge of the domestic service improvement office, the manager in
charge of the domestic management office, the manager in charge of the
domestic planning office, the head of the business planning department,
the merchandise manager of MKT office and CV project, the head of
the project management department, the executive officer in charge
of the project management department and cost planning department,
the executive officer in charge of the eighth and ninth divisions of the
overseas business and the assistant to the head of the PT business
department. Mr. MAEGAKI is currently the managing executive officer
of Isuzu and the assistant to the fourth division of oversea business
department of Isuzu and has been the vice chairman of Qingling Isuzu
(Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. from 2010 to 2014.

B8R AR DB BR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Mr. Masanori OTA, aged 62, has been an executive director of the
Company since 15 June 2016. He graduated from the Faculty of
Engineering of Nagoya Institute of Technology in 1979. Mr. OTA joined
Isuzu in April 1979, and successively served as the Section Chief of FO
Technology Division of Raw Material Factory Technology Department
(FHE M TISEAMTEBFORMTAEZE &) and the key member of I.T. Forging
Department of Isuzu (Thailand)(FL 82 Z=B1I.T. & ZE &) from 1993 until
2000. Mr. OTA was re-designated back to Isuzu in 2000 to serve as the
Section Chief of PT Production Technology Department (PTAERITE R
%) and later held the position as the Head of the Third Department of PT
Manufacturing (PT &5 = 202 ) and the Head of the PT Public Works
Department (PTLH3E&). He had served as the Executive Officer
(#h771% B) of Main Department of Technology (3:{f7Z<#f), Production
Department (£ Z&BF9), PT Manufacturing Department (PT&23&EEE) and PT
Quality Management Department (PT5'& &2 &) since 2013.

Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO, aged 62, has been an executive director of
the Company since 9 June 2017. He graduated from the School of
Engineering, Osaka Prefecture University. Mr. YAMAMOTO joined Isuzu
Motors Limited (“Isuzu”) in April 1981, and was the person in charge
and deputy officer of Group Il of Isuzu Truck of America INC and Product
Planning Department (Compact Car) of Isuzu, Manager of GM office and
Manager of the Planning and Design (Large-size Product) Department. He
was appointed as the Executive Officer of the Engineering Department
and the Development Department in April 2013. Since April 2016 to
present, Mr. YAMAMOTO has been serving as the Senior Executive
Officer of the Engineering Department, the Global CV Vehicle Design and
the Development Department.
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Mr. LI Juxing, aged 52, has been an executive director of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology,
majoring in casting. He holds a bachelor degree of engineering and is a
senior engineer. Mr. LI successively served as a technician of a foundry
of Chongaing Automobile Manufacturing Plant (EE/TEREEM), a
head of the biotechnology department, a head of the quality department,
a deputy chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Chongqging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (EEE$#EEARR A F) since July
1990. He became a deputy chief engineer of Qingling Group since 2005
and concurrently served as the general managers of Chongging Qingling
Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (EEEREIRAEMR A7) and Chongging
Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (EEERBEAFRAR]). Since 2010, he has
been working as a deputy general manager of Qingling Group and he also
serves as the vice chairman of Isuzu Qingling (Chong Qing) Autoparts
Co., Ltd, the chairman of Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. and a
director of Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd.. During the period
from 26 September 2016 to 22 December 2016, Mr. LI served as the
acting Chairman of the Company.

Mr. XU Song, aged 50, has been an executive director of the Company
since 15 June 2016. He is a senior engineer. Mr. XU joined the Chinese
Communist Party in June 1988. He graduated from the Faculty of
Engineering Machinery of Jilin University of Technology in July 1989,
majoring in crane transport and engineering machinery. Mr. XU was
awarded a bachelor degree in Engineering and a master degree in
Business Administration. He worked in the equipment department of
Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant as an internship in 1989 and
successively served as an assistant engineer and the deputy head of
manufacturing factory. From 1995 to 2004, he worked at the Company
and successively served as the deputy head, the head of manufacturing
factory and the head of the product development department. Since
2004, Mr. XU served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling
Group and the Company, and successively served as the head of the
business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company and
the director of chief engineer office of the Company. Since 2005, he
served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling Group and the
vice general manager of the Company, and also served as the head of
the business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company.
He also served as the head of the procurement department of Qingling
Group in November 2005. From 2009 to 2012, he successively served
as the deputy general manager and a member of the party committee
of Qingling Group, the general manager, the secretary and a member of
the Party Committee of Chongging Qingling Casting Company Limited.
From 2012 till now, Mr. XU served as the deputy general manager and a
member of the Party Committee of Qingling Group.
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Mr. LONG Tao, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting.
Mr. LONG holds a master’'s degree in economics. He had served at
Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance and Economics,
and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr. LONG had acted as a
member of Securities Issue and Approval Committee of China Securities
Regulatory Commission and member of Chinese accounting expert
panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team. Mr. LONG is currently an
associate professor of the Accountancy Division of Central University of
Finance and Economics and the Chairman of Beijing Haiwen Investment
Consultants Inc.. Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and experience
in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal, restructuring
of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG also serves as the independent
non-executive director of Crown International Corporation Limited (the
shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 727). Mr. LONG resigned as the independent non-executive
director of China Asset Management Co., Ltd and Beijing North Star
Company Limited (the H shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 588) respectively in 2012 and 2015.

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 67, has been an independent non- executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman and
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG is
general manager of Chongqging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member of the
China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers Association, and
a council member of the Chongging Lawyers Association, a vice chairman
of the Foreign Affairs Committee of Chongqging Lawyers Association
and a member of the Chongqing Legal Academy. Mr. SONG has been a
lawyer and notary for 29 years. Mr. SONG graduated from South West
Institute of Political Science and Law and also studied international law in
the China University of Political Science and Law and foreign economic
law at Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice chairman of Chongging
Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging Foreign Law Office.
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Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 54, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. LIU is also the executive director, the chairman
and the chief executive officer of Wonderful Sky Financial Group
Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1260), an executive director and deputy managing
director of Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the shares of
which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 171) and
Luoyang Glass Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1108). Mr. LIU graduated from
Beijing Normal University with a master degree in science. He has over
15 years of experience in corporate administration and trade business.
In October 2008, Mr. LIU was awarded “Outstanding Young Chinese
Entrepreneur of the World” by Asiaweek, as an acknowledgement of his
excellent corporate management and prominent business strategies.

Mr. LIU Erh Fei, aged 59, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harvard Business School with a
master degree in Business Administration. He graduated from Brandeis
University with a bachelor degree in Economics and International
Relations in 1984 and from Beijing Foreign Studies University, majoring
in English, in 1981. From 1987 to 2012, Mr. LIU served as the head of
China region for Goldman Sachs Group, the head of Thailand and China
regions for Morgan Stanley Group, the head of Asia Pacific region for the
Smith Barney investment bank of the US, the head of Asia Pacific region
for the investment banking department of Crédit Agricole Corporate and
Investment Bank and the chairman of China region and the co-head of
the Asia Pacific region for the investment banking department of Merrill
Lynch Group. He is now working as the vice-chairman of Xin Tai Fund
Management Company ((EZ=EEEE A F]) (the largest shareholder
of which is Cinda Group) and Hwabao Financial (financial segment of
Baosteel) and the independent director of Wing Lung Bank Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of China Merchants Bank Company Limited
(the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 3968)).
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. GUAN Jinming, aged 60, has been the supervisor representing the
Shareholders and the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee since 28
May 2015. He graduated from Chongging Workers and Staff Members
College (EEMHE T K2), majoring in finance and accounting and from
Southwest University with a master degree of Agricultural Promotion.
He is a senior accountant. During the period from November 1976 to
February 2015, Mr. GUAN served in a number of positions including
a mine worker at Tushan, Chongqging, an officer of labour union, an
accounting officer of the finance section of a radio second plant in
Chongging, an accounting officer of the finance section of an electronic
equipment company in Chongging, an accounting officer of the finance
section of Electronic Bureau in Chongging City, Sichuan Province, a
deputy section officer of the audit section of Resources Bureau in
Chongging City, Sichuan Province, a deputy section officer and a section
officer of the information section of Economic Committee in Chongging
City, Sichuan Province, a section officer of the Production Administration
Bureau of Economic Committee in Chongging City, Sichuan Province,
a deputy director of the Production Administration Bureau of Economic
Committee in Chongqing City, Sichuan Province, a deputy director of the
Production Administration Bureau of Economic Committee in Chongging
City, a section chief of the food products section of Economic Committee
in Chongging City, a director of the enterprise reformation section of
Economic Committee in Chongqing City, a vice-president and a member
of the party committee of Chongging Machinery and Electronic Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd. (EE#EZI(EE)AF]), a president, a secretary
of the party branch and a director of Chongging United Assets and
Equity Exchange Company Limited, a deputy general manager, a party
committee standing member, a chairman of supervisory committee and
a party committee member of the China Silian Instrument Group Co.,
Ltd and a chairman of supervisory committee of Chongging Chuanyi
Automation Co.,Ltd.. Mr. GUAN has been a chairman of supervisory
committee and a party committee member of Qingling Group since
February 2015.

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 50, has been the supervisor representing the
Shareholders since 15 June 2006. Ms. MIN ceased to be the Chairman
of the Supervisory Committee on 28 May 2015. Ms. MIN is the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Workers
Union of Qingling Group, and has 25 years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduate
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

Mr. LEI Bin, aged 43, has been a supervisor representing the staff and
workers of the Company since 6 June 2012. Mr. LEI graduated from
Hunan University, specializing in international finance, and obtained the
bachelor degree in economics. He joined the Company from July 1997
until the present. Mr. LEl was served as a vice minister of comprehensive
plan. He is the minister of the financial department of Qingling Group.
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Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each member
has been performing his duty in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association with a view of protecting the interests of shareholders
and the Company. We have attended the board meetings and have
given our opinions regarding the business development, market
expansion, technological reform, basic management and team building
of the Company. We have also monitored the guiding ideology of the
management and considered whether the decisions made by the
management were in compliance with state laws and whether they
were appropriate for the development of the Company and were in the
interests of shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information in a timely manner. In our opinion, the financial
statements have been properly prepared while the accounting principles
and the method of financial management adopted are in compliance with
relevant rules and regulations.

The Supervisory Committee have carefully examined the financial
statements, the Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of
profit to be presented before the annual general meeting by the Board of
Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the Board, directors, managers
and senior management have not engaged in any malpractices which
would be prejudicial to the interests of shareholders and employees of
the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as well as
the economic results of the Company, and we are confident about the
future development of the Company.

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
GUAN Jinming

Chongging, PRC,
23 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose vehicles
and diesel and petrol engines. The activities of its principal subsidiaries,
an associate and joint ventures are set out in notes 36, 19 and 20
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair view
of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year 2017 and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Directors’ Report”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” sections
of this annual report. In addition, a discussion of the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, the Company’'s compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company and the relationship between the Company and significant
stakeholders is set out in “Directors’ Report” and “Corporate Governance
Report” sections of this annual report. The business review in the above
sections comprise part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 73. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.16 per share to the shareholders
whose names appear in the register of members on 12 June 2018,
amounting to approximately RMB397,163,000.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection, energy- saving and
emission reduction, and the integrated use of resources. Adhering to the
principles of making production and operation harmony to the ecological
environment, the Group has adopted the concept of environmental
protection, energy-saving and emission reduction and the integrated use
of resources in its production and operating activities through reducing
emission, protecting the environment and saving of resources while
putting into practice the scientific concepts of environmental protection
and integrated use of resources.

The Group keeps placing strong emphasis on environmental protection
issues and coordinates the relationship between production development
and environmental protection, with the aim to develop pollution-free
production modes. The successive operation of the newly-installed
environmental protection facilities, the improvement of working
environment and the integrated measures adopted to prevent and
mitigate pollution have made the pollutants produced not exceeding
the standards set by local environmental authorities. The Group strives
to protect and improve the environment, enhance the environmental
awareness of our staff, ensure the well-being of our staff and builds a
clean and favorable production and working environment. With various
measures such as resources recycling and reusing and energy- saving
and emission reduction putting in place in the production process, the
Group endeavors to produce energy-saving and environmentally-friendly
products while keeping in mind the well- being of the production
workers. The implementation of the above measures fully demonstrates
the Group's sustainable development strategies and its determination on
environmental protection.

The environmental, social and governance report will be published on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on or before the end
of June 2018.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

With regard to the protection of intellectual properties — The Group has
complied with the terms stipulated under the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China and its Regulation for the Implementation of
the Trademark Law and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Rules for the Implementation of the Patent Law and the specific
requirements of the city to carry out the work in relation to the design
and file registration of trademarks and patents and has actively taken
measures to protect the trademarks and patents of other interested
stakeholders.

With regard to the product quality and consumer rights — The Group
has strictly complied with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Product Quality and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in the manufacturing and
selling procedures of automobile products and automobile parts. With
respect to product quality, the Group strengthens source management
and formulates stringent standard in evaluating parts suppliers to ensure
the quality of parts products and prevent substandard goods being
passed off as high-quality ones while purchasing automobile products
and parts. During the production process, standardized management
is strictly implemented with an emphasis on the management of
craftsmanship quality, and defective and substandard parts are prohibited
to be assembled at the production line in order to ensure the satisfactory
rate at the production line. Before the products are transferred into the
warehouses, product quality inspection system were strictly put in place
to forbid defective products being launched. In terms of protection of
consumers’ rights, we have complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights, and product
manuals with full details are provided to consumers while advertisements
are tailored to truly reflect the authentic characteristics of products.

With regard to the interests of the employees — The Group strives
to comply with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Social Insurance
Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as to safeguard the legitimate
interests of workers. All full-time employees are entitled to work-related
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance, pension
insurance, and maternity insurance and housing fund as required by the
state regulations. The Group has also arranged annual body check for
all of its staff, and this further protects the legitimate interests of the
employees. Moreover, the Group also actively organizes activities for its
employees with regard to the education of prevention of occupational
disease and other safety and health related issues.

With regard to tax payment — The Group complies with specific
regulations of the People’s Republic of China on various taxes, and
pays taxes according to the law for the purpose of ensuring that all
tax payment made by the Group is in compliance with the laws and
regulations.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

Risks relating to the decline in sales and profit as a result of
weakened market environment

As China's economy is stepping into ‘new normal’ amid the cross
impact of the ‘overlapping of the three phases’, the sales of domestic
commercial vehicles decline as a result of the overall decline in demand
for commercial vehicles. With the protracted economic downturn, the
competition in the domestic commercial vehicles market may further
exacerbate, causing impact to the Group's sales for commercial vehicles
and hence affecting the Group's profit.

Risks relating to the insufficient research and development and
the increase in costs in order to adapt to the tightened national
regulations on emission and consumer demand

Taken into the consideration of environmental protection, the national
regulations on emission tend to be tightened and the switching time
tends to be shortened while the consumer demand tends to be more
diversified and competitors tend to launch new products more frequently,
this has put forward higher requirement for the Group’s research and
development capability. However, there exists lead time from research
and development to commercial production of replacement products,
the Group’s capability in research and development is crucial in
satisfying national and consumer requirements while outperforming the
competitors. Nevertheless, it may not be possible to timely launch new
products that can outperform competitors every time due to constraints
on capital, time, and ability. Since the Group’s costs on research and
development will be driven up by the launching of new products, such
research and development costs may have to transfer to the product
price to the extent not offset by the reasonable reduction of the Group's
internal costs, and this will inevitably weaken the Group’s product
competitiveness.

Risks relating to the fall of products’ popularity and reputation
among consumers

In recent years, the competition among domestic commercial vehicles
enterprises intensifies as the market environment deteriorates.
Competitors keep launching mid-to-high end commercial trucks into the
market, causing unfavorable impact to the Group’s dominant position in
the mid-to-high end commercial truck market.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB76,250,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 15 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or at any
time during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company's Articles of Association, the amount of
profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the lesser of the
amount of profit determined in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to companies established
in the PRC (“PRC GAAP") and that determined in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The Company's profit
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2017 was the
retained profit of approximately RMB1,703,184,000 (2016: approximately
RMB1,675,649,000) (determined in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

(i) making up losses;
(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund,

(i) if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect of
preference shares;

(iv)  allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and

(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.
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AR EVEEARNYRFENEESERL The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (i) to (v) above
fﬁ'JEEé%A@F% AREA LB REE M for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in accordance
o WE2HBERAEET - with the operational conditions of the Company and its development
requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for
approval.
EERESE DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS
RAFEAREERNREBBRZARREER The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
BEEZRENT the date of this report were:
HITEE - Executive Directors:
BFENTEEER) Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
ABE— Bl e (B E FRFABITHE) Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
SERSLE Mr. GAO Jianmin
(R=—F—+F=H—+/IHEHE) (resigned on 24 March 2017)
ANHEIELEE Mr. Masanori OTA
ANRES Cta Mr. Yoshifumi KOMURA
(R=F—+F AN HEHE) (resigned on 9 June 2017)
AR R 5 A Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO
(R=F—LFANANHEZ(F) (appointed on 9 June 2017)
ZEELAE Mr. LI Juxing
BRIMEE Mr. XU Song
BUINTES - Independent Non-Executive Directors:
s LONG Tao
KRNI SONG Xiaojiang
2= LIU Erh Fei
2IRAR LIU Tianni
EXE: Supervisors:
WEREER) GUAN Jinming (Chairman)
RIE MIN Qing
B, LEI Bin

FIBRAARBIZESERES MR -Z The terms of all existing directors and supervisors of the Company will
—N\FEARTRREAFERg 2 AfER  MES expire on the date of 2018 annual general meeting of the Company and
ARFEERR - N\FARAKREAFRE they are eligible for re-election at the 2018 annual general meeting of the
LEEEE Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors and independent non-executive directors
that will be re-elected will renew or enter into service contracts or
appointment letters with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 30 May 2018.

All the supervisors that will be re-elected and appointed will renew or
enter into appointment letters with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 30 May 2018.

None of the directors or supervisors has a service contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the independent non-executive
directors is independent of the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, none of the directors or the supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors and supervisors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ MATERIAL
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any directors or supervisors or their
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or existed
during the year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company had
any interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION AND THE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

The details of directors’, supervisors’ and chief executives’ remuneration
and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. All of the five highest paid individuals of the
Company for both years were directors.

B 5255 A% D AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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BRRABRERRR

RZZ—+F+-A=+—8  KRaIKREZ
it ERBRERAZA118%  MARAESE « 2
Bl meTRABUINZ BRREERIEES R
HAEI& P B 336 18R E AR AR A METF A D
EFMARBRMATRBRE AR R EBERNE
BT AL % s A RIS MOR BTN ¢

ARBBOOFRER :

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, there were 118 shareholders recorded in the
register of shareholders of the Company and the shareholders other
than a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company, having
an interest and short positions in 5% or more of the relevant class of
the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests in the shares and short positions required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

{EBRER
BFESL {L#8R%F
Percentage of Batt

FrISARMEE

the relevant Percentage of

BREB B in%a R Number of F{3 class of  entire share
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares shares held Capacity share capital capital
BB (EE)BERRQA] W& & 1,243,616,4030% ExSHEHB A 100.00% 50.10%
Qingling Motors (Group) Domestic shares 1,243,616,403 shares Beneficial owner 100.00% 50.10%
Company Limited
A+8AEARRAA HA% 496,453,654 Em#EA A 40.08% 20.00%
Isuzu Motors Limited H shares 496,453,654 shares Beneficial owner 40.08% 20.00%
Allianz SE HA% 102,122,000/ (ff71) ZPEGLEE 8.24% 411%
Allianz SE H shares 102,122,000 shares Interest of a 8.24% 4.11%
(Note)  controlled
corporation
Edgbaston Investment HA% 68,655,000 fi% & &E 42 5.54% 2.77%
Partners LLP
Edgbaston Investment H shares 68,655,000 shares Investment 5.54% 2.77%

Partners LLP

3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT
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et - Note:
AT RAllianz SEFTH B AR Rl Z IRI) e AR ED - The details of the interests held by Allianz SE in the Company are as follows:
BRiZIERERN
Total interests in shares
RERRRAE HEER

ZREERB Name of controlling :f =204 Hiz@R Indirect

Name of controlled corporation shareholders % controlled Direct interests interests

Allianz Asset Management AG Allianz SE 100% _ 102,122,000

Allianz Global Investors GmbH Allianz Asset Management 100% - 101,600,000
AG

RCM Asia Pacific Ltd. Allianz Global Investors 100% 98,240,000 -
GmbH

Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Ltd. Allianz Global Investors 100% 3,360,000 -
GmbH

Allianz Asset Management of America Holdings Allianz Asset Management 100% - 522,000

Inc. AG

Allianz Asset Management of America L.P. Allianz Asset Management 100% - 522,000
of America Holdings Inc.

Allianz Global Investors U.S. Holdings LLC Allianz Asset Management 100% - 522,000
of America L.P.

Allianz Global Investors Fund Management LLC Allianz Global Investors 100% 522,000 -

U.S.Holdings LLC

B EXIRBEEIN  ARAREHE_ZT—+F Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

+ - A=+ —HIEEREETMERARRD % other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of
TR At BRI OR B R A o the Company as at 31 December 2017.

FEBR EMOLUMENT POLICY

FWEEE (B —RUTEFRIUEE I The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
TESAKBEEE ZER - BB NEEDE] Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive director and
FEAEEES 7 #HEBER - four independent non-executive directors) on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

HMEESRBEANT 2L EBES =EFR The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
KIR GO R TSI R T AN EE 2 & Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
B - results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

B8R AR DB BR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 25
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had continuing connected transactions with
(a) Qingling Group and its subsidiaries EEE 5§54 AR A alChongging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (“CQCC"), EEE K BEER QA
Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (“CQFC"), EEEXEBER QT
Chongging Qingling Axle Co. Ltd. ("CQAC"), EEES B ERFARAR]
Chongging Qingling NHK Seat Co. Ltd. (“CONHK"), EEE&RERARA
&lChongging Qingling Plastic Co. Ltd. ("CQPC"), EEE#EIRER AR
Chongging Qingling Aluminium Casting Co.Ltd. (“CQACL"), EEE% R
HEA& T AR A FChongging Qingling Automobile Chassis Parts Co.
Ltd. (“QAC"), EEE N7 PR A FChongging Qingling Machinery
Parts Co. Ltd. ("QM") and EEEHRZEMAEHFR A E)("Qingling Zhuan
Yong”, formerly known as EEE$R/TE FEEEFR AT Chongging
Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly Co. Ltd., (b) EEE
#EB R A E]("Qingling Moulds”), a sino-joint venture company which is
owned as to 50.56% and 49.44% by the Company and Isuzu respectively
and a subsidiary of the Company, (c) Isuzu, (d) Qingling Isuzu (Chongging)
Engine Co.,Ltd. (“Qingling Isuzu Engine”), an entity established and
jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (e) Qingling Isuzu (Chongging)
Automobile Sales and Service Co.,Ltd (“Qingling Isuzu Sales”), an entity
established and jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (f) Isuzu
Qingling (Chongging) Engineering Co., Ltd (“Isuzu Qingling Engineering”),
an associate controlled by Isuzu, and (g) Isuzu Qingling (Chongging)
Autoparts Co., Ltd (“Isuzu Qingling Autoparts”), a company controlled
by Isuzu and invested by the Qingling Group. Qingling Group and Isuzu
held 50.10% and 20.00% of the equity of the Company respectively as
at 31 December 2017. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the above parties
are connected persons of the Group. Details of the continuing connected
transactions with the parties are as follows:
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(@)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries:

(i

On 22 December 2016, the Company entered into the New
Parts Supply Agreements with Qingling Group, CQCC,
CQFC, CQAC, CQONHK, CQPC and CQACL, respectively,
relating to the supply of certain automobile parts by Qingling
Group, CQCC, CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK, CQPC and CQACL,
respectively, to the Company, and the supply of certain
consolidated services by the Company to CQFC and the
lease of certain machineries by the Company to CQAC. With
respect to the automobile parts provided to the Company, the
price is based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever
is lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%
determined in the following order: at prices not higher than
market prices; or if no comparable market price, at prices
based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever is
lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%,
and in any event, at prices no less favourable than those
offered to independent third parties. The payment shall be
made within one month after delivery. With respect to the
consolidated services provided by the Company to CQFC, the
price is determined based on actual costs incurred plus taxes
payable. With respect to the lease of machineries by the
Company to CQAC, the rental payable is determined based
on the depreciation charge of the relevant machineries for
the relevant year plus taxes payable.

B8R A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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On 22 December 2016, the Company also entered into the
New Autoparts and Materials Agreement with CQCC, CQFC,
CQACL, CQAC, CQPC, CONHK, QAC, QM and Qingling
Zhuan Yong respectively. The Company will sell to CQCC
the scrap metal left over from the Company’s manufacturing
process and the prices shall not be lower than the market
price of scrap metal of same type and the price of such scrap
metal sold by the Company to independent third parties (if
any); the Company will supply to CONHK and Qingling Zhuan
Yong semi-finished auto parts and the prices of which will
be determined based on costs incurred by the Company
plus a profit margin of not exceeding 8%, and the Company
will supply to all Qingling Autoparts Companies (refer to all
subsidiaries of Qingling Group in the supply agreements) raw
and crafting materials including but not limited to gasoline,
diesel, cutting fluid, tools and equipment, and machinery
spare parts, which will be sourced by the Company from
suppliers which are independent and not connected persons
to the Company, and the prices of which will be equivalent
to the cost of sourcing such materials from independent third
parties plus the relevant tax payable.

During the year, the amount for the above continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

Sales of automobile parts and others:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 1): approximately

RMB7,952,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB26,773,000;

with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB3,343,000;

with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB10,866,000;

with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB9,955,000;

with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB724,000; and

with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB1,220,000.
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Purchases of automobile parts:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 2): approximately
RMB10,726,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB25,040,000;
with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB35,277,000;
with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB393,142,000;
with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB55,096,000;
with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB62,314,000; and

with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB9,289,000.

Supply of consolidated services:

With respect to CQFC: approximately RMB591,000.

Lease of machineries:

With respect to CQAC: approximately RMB521,000.

Note 1: Including approximately RMB1,256,000, approximately
RMB3,184,000 and approximately RMB3,512,000
representing the sales of parts and raw materials to
QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong and QAC respectively during
the year.

Note 2: Including approximately RMB2,396,000, approximately
RMB3,899,000 and approximately RMB4,431,000
representing the purchases of automobile parts from
QM, Qingling Zhuan Yong and QAC respectively during
the year.
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Qingling Moulds entered into the New Qingling Group
Moulds Supply Agreement with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries CQCC, CQFC, CQPC and CQACL on 22
December 2016. And the price is determined on normal
commercial terms, relating to the supply of moulds and
related products and/or maintenance and processing services
by Qingling Moulds to the aforesaid companies. And the
price is determined on normal commercial terms. If there
are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, the price shall be on
terms fair and reasonable to Qingling Moulds, referring to the
costs incurred by the Company plus a profit margin of not
exceeding 8%, which shall be no less favourable to Qingling
Moulds than terms offered to independent third parties. The
payment shall be made within one month after delivery.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB121,000.

The Company entered into a the New Chassis Supply
Agreement with the Qingling Group on 22 December
2016, relating to the sale of automobile chassis and related
components by the Company to Qingling Group, the price
is determined with reference to the market price of chassis
and related components with a credit period of three to
six months after the sale. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,419,794,000.

The Company entered into The New Warehouse Leasing
Agreement on 22 December 2016 with Qingling Group,
relating to the lease of warehouse, the Land with an area of
approximately 19,880.4m? for storage of autoparts and raw
materials, the Land with an area of approximately 20,697m?
for use as a testing site for autoparts; and the Land with an
area of approximately 10,000m? by Qingling Group to the
Company at a consideration of RMB5,788,000, RMB914,000,
RMB952,000, RMB460,000 respectively per annum.
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The aforesaid considerations for the leasing of warehouses are set
by the Board by reference to the depreciation charged by Qingling
Group, on straight-line depreciation basis, on the relevant assets
during the year. For the leasing of certain parts of the Land, the
considerations are determined with reference to the prevailing
market rent and existing rent payable by the Group under the
current leasing agreements. The considerations are set at prices
not higher than market prices; or at prices no less favourable than
those offered by Qingling Group to Independent Third Parties. The
consideration payable by the Company under the New Warehouse
Leasing Agreement is determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto. The Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are of the view that the New Warehouse
Leasing Agreement are fair and reasonable, such transactions will
continue to be conducted on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, and, such
transactions (including the rents payable by the Company), are in
the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

(v)  The Company entered into the New Machinery Leasing
Agreement with CQFC, on 22 December 20186, relating to
the lease of machineries for further processing of casting
and forging parts from CQFC by the Company. Annual
rental was based on the depreciation charge of the relevant
machineries for the relevant year payable by the Company to
CQFC in cash on quarterly basis, subject to adjustment upon
consultation with each other if there is a material change
on the depreciation charge. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB19,974,000.

(vi)  The Company entered into the Qingling Group Equipment
Lease with the Qingling Group on 22 December 2016,
relating to the lease of equipment, namely the 110kVA
electrical substation and its ancillary facilities from Qingling
Group by the Company. The rent for the Leased Equipment
(Qingling Group) is determined with reference to the annual
depreciation rate under the accounting policy currently
adopted by the Qingling Group. The monthly rents shall be
adjusted accordingly if there is material variation in the value
and/or material depreciation of the Leased Equipment. The
Company shall pay the rent of three months before the last
day of the quarter by crediting a bank account specified
by the Qingling Group. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB867,000.
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PR AFERNEEREERENRBEA The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Al BER FFIE RS EINENERE B Qingling Group and its subsidiaries during the year are set out in
TR MIFE32() © note 32(j) to the consolidated financial statements.

(o) HEERERSEFERMELS (b)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Moulds:
RZE—RE+ZAZ+=H  ARQF On 22 December 2016, the Company and Qingling Moulds entered
B SRS AT T 155 into the following agreements:

() HFEREAHERZE  ATER (i) The New Qingling Moulds Supply Agreement, relating to the
EREAERAQRREER XA supply of moulds and related products and maintenance and
FAE mAKEE RN TR « A processing services by Qingling Moulds to the Company,
ANEIMERELREREERINT the supply of raw materials and processing services by
fR% - AR R E SRR AR AR the Company to Qingling Moulds, and the provision of
AR - BEETRAHKRE consolidated services including but not limited to water and
TR ~ RIEHEE RIRERE - gas supply services, equipment repair and maintenance
BELMEERBE=ZHERER services, medical and hygiene services and the Three
%o EEE—MEEEREE Warranties by the Company to Qingling Moulds. The price
WEFEAIELRR ZHEEZ is determined on normal commercial terms, if there are no
BER—MEAFGRIET - ARy sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
BRBAFEBZIGHETE - M on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and reasonable to
BRGERTEREREARBL the Company, and the terms are no less favorable than the
FZTRBAEHR - RRFE— terms available to independent third parties from Qingling
&3 AR - Moulds. The payment shall be made within one month after

delivery.
RAFER - KNIEFERE During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
REGMNFEBESHOAARE connected transaction was approximately RMB14,220,000,
14,220,0007C ' SHE SN AA the sales amount was approximately RMB12,523,000 and
R #12,523,0007T KR A BRI UL the consolidated services income was RMB244,000.

A ARE244,0007T °

iy FEHEBEAHEY ABRBERER (i)  The New Qingling Moulds Lease, relating to using the
BEETBEARRHEAN LTI Land for its operations only by Qingling Moulds from the
AREEREE  BREENSE Company. The agreement shall be effective from the date
FrA MR X NS AR — Y upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all
REE - ERERBTKABH other procedures in accordance with all applicable laws, rules
HwEFEARK T —tF—H— and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31
AAREERE)ZE-_FT—NF December 2019. The monthly rent for the Land (Qingling
+ZA=Z+—H - L (EKRIE Moulds) is determined with reference to the market value
B AMEN2E T H(BRER) of the Land (Qingling Moulds) and the rent paid by Qingling
WMERERELREERER Moulds under the Qingling Moulds Lease plus taxes
AT B © DA K 8 RS payable for leasing. The monthly rent under the Qingling
BET BEEREABELY A Moulds Lease is RMB3,946.09 per month. During the year,
A ARKS,946.097T - NEE the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
N ABREBEISNEELY approximately RMB43,000.

R AR¥A43,0007T ©
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(c)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

On 22 December 2016, the Company entered into the
New Isuzu Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby Isuzu
provides the Company with certain automobile parts and
components produced by Isuzu and which are required in the
production processes. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price of the Company’s purchases of
automobile parts and components is determined with
reference to actual or reasonable costs incurred (whichever
is lower) plus a profit margin of not more than 10%, and the
payment shall be made at the time of delivery. During the
year, the amount of the continuing connected transaction
was approximately RMB544,446,000.

On 22 December 2016, the Company entered into the
New Company Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby
the Company provides Isuzu with certain accessory sets
and other automobile parts and components produced by
the Company and which are required in the production
processes of Isuzu. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the sales price of those parts and components
is determined with reference to actual or reasonable costs
incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of not more
than 10%, and the payment shall be made within 40 days
after delivery. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB3,104,000.

During the year, the Company continued the transactions
under the technology transfer agreements with Isuzu entered
on 20 February 2000, 23 May 2008, 21 December 2012, 27
April 2016 and 26 March 2014 for the transfer of technology
and provision of technical know-how and the permission to
use the trademark of Isuzu and the emblem by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sales of F series Chassis
and related parts and components, 700P3X series vehicles
and related parts and components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ
vehicles, FYH vehicles, CYH vehicles, CYZ vehicles and EXR/
EXZ vehicles.

The price is set at an initial fee (among which, the initial fee for F
series Chassis and 700P3X series vehicles and related parts and
components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ vehicles, FYH vehicles, has
already been fully paid by the Company to Isuzu), plus royalties,
which is determined with reference to the price of the parts and
components manufactured and sold by the Company pursuant to
the agreement, staff training fees and technical assistance fees.

B8R AR DB BR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd



34

EEERE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

B ARAREA+ER T —NF=A
T RNBERITREEAT A s #
BT AR T —TE A AR R AR
$HE RN B A ER600P  100P K& TF/
UCRIAEBERFER R +RBIERIZR
(MSUZUIRTRH+44]) - WA EE RF
YRE 7 B iZ(E A B (600P £ 5! : 2,0008
B, & - 100PZ&% : 1,5008 &, -
TF/UCZZ : 1,500 B, #H) o

NAEER - SR s K S+ Al
A MEAERZNELSREOR
AR¥17,368,0007T °

FARAFENRLTRZEERS
HBEREETENGE M BERRM T
32(ii)

HIFRN T BBy EARFEMER
5

RZBE—RF+ZA=+=8 " AAQ7A
EREESS A TR BB ET S T A e

() FBEHZE  ATERARBR
BRATHREDRREHBEHRT
BERRMBAAREZRSRE
Ko MERATREHEAAR
Bl B AR T AR
KR#ERE  ERHMEREMR
AR R, HRE—ER
ER ERMROIER A A
RFERA=_T—tF—A—
BUABREE RE)E-_T—NF
TZA=T—H - REFNEMEA
BpraBHE BEEMNER
EEMEMERGK - BRHEE
TTEV BB E N EBE10% 8
HIE - MR EREARRTOT
BHETAFAENEEETE -
R EFE AR - RAF
BAR - REFERERZNRE
SR/ ARKE,188,106,000
TCHETROABARE
628,635,0007T °

3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

Also, the Company and Isuzu made the Trademark Licensing
Agreement on 26 March 2014. Isuzu continues to grant the
Company a non-transferrable right to use the trademarks and
emblems of Isuzu, “ISUZU" and “F 15", in the sale of the 600P,
100P and TF/UC series vehicles produced by the Company. And
the License fee for each series of vehicle is as follows: JPY2,000
for each 600P series vehicle sold, JPY1,500 for each 100P series
vehicle sold and JPY 1,500 for each TF/UC series vehicle sold.

During the year, the amount incurred for the continuing
connected transaction under the technology transfer agreements
and technology licensing agreements was approximately
RMB17,368,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu during the year are set out in note 32(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu
Engine:

On 22 December 2016 the Company and Qingling Isuzu Engine
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Supply Agreement, relating to the provision of
parts and raw materials of engines for assembling and
composing engine assemblies by the Company to Qingling
Isuzu Engine, whereas Qingling Isuzu Engine provides engine
assemblies and their parts to the Company for assembling
and maintenance of automobile. The agreement shall be
effective from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals
and/or completing all other procedures in accordance with
all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The actual selling
price of the products to be supplied/purchased and other
related terms in any further specific agreement shall be
the actual costs of the supplying party plus a profit margin
of not exceeding 10%. Such premium shall be finalised by
both parties on the basis that it is fair and reasonable to both
parties. Payment will be within half a month after delivery.
During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB1,188,106,000
and the selling amount was approximately RMB628,635,000.
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The New Consolidated Services Agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such as
water and gas supply, transportation, equipment repair and
maintenance, medical and hygiene and three warranties)
by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine. The agreement
shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all relevant
approvals and/or completing all other procedures in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1
January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The
actual price for the services to be provided by the Company
under the New Consolidated Services Agreement or any
further specific agreement(s) shall be the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB991,000.

The New Equipment Lease, relating to the lease of leased
equipment by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine. The
agreement shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all
relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations or
1 January 2017 (whichever is later) 31 December 2019. The
monthly rent is determined with reference to the depreciated
value of the leased equipment of the leased equipment at
the time of valuation previously conducted by an independent
international asset appraisal firm and the market value
of the leased equipment. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB39,120,000.

The New Factory Lease, relating to the lease of land and
factory premises by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine.
The agreement shall be effective from the date upon
obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all other
procedures in accordance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to
31 December 2019. The monthly rent was approximately
RMB392,000, which is determined with reference to the
value of the Leased Land and the Factory Premises taking
into account its annual depreciation and taxes payable for
leasing. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB4,324,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with

Qingling Isuzu Engine during the year are also set out in note 32(iii)

to the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu
Sales:

On 22 December 2016, the Company and Qingling Isuzu Sales
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The Sales JV Lease, relating to the lease of leased land and
premises by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The lease
agreement shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all
relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1
January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The
monthly rent is determined with reference to the depreciation
charged to such land and premises of the Company plus
relevant tax. The monthly rent is approximately RMB143,000.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB1,541,000.

(i) ~ The New Sales JV Consolidated Services Agreement,
relating to the provision of certain services (including services
such as transportation, equipment repair and maintenance,
medical and hygiene and three warranties) by the Company
to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The agreement shall be effective
from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The price is
determined at actual costs plus tax payable. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB472,000.
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The New Sales JV Supply Agreement, relating to the provision
of automobiles and parts by the Company to Qingling Isuzu
Sales. The agreement shall be effective from the date upon
obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all other
procedures in accordance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2019. The actual selling prices of the automobiles
or their parts to be supplied/purchased and other related
terms in any further specific agreement shall not be lower
than the market prices of the automobiles or their parts and
shall not be lower than the prices offered to Independent
Third Parties. If there are no comparable market prices,
prices shall be based on actual costs or reasonable costs
(whichever is lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more
than 8%. Reasonable cost is the estimation of the cost of the
relevant products by the parties using the historical cost in
the market as reference and based on the relevant enterprise
technology, craft and comprehensive management level.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB57,166,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with

Qingling Isuzu Sales during the year are set out in note 32(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(H BRTREHRBNERIHEBRER (/) Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering:
5
RZZE—ARF+—_A=+=H AR On 22 December 2016, the company and Isuzu Qingling
BF 8RB S R T P B 5T L T ihak Engineering entered into the following agreements:
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(i

The New Factory Lease (Isuzu Qingling Engineering), relating
to the lease of the factory premises by the Company to
Isuzu Qingling Engineering. The agreement shall be effective
from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. Pursuant to
the New Factory Lease (Isuzu Qingling Engineering), the
rent consists of fixed portion and float portion. The fixed
portion includes basic rent in respect of the leasing of the
Engineering Factory Premises, the provision of basic service
facilities and maintenance cost; the float portion represents
the replacement cost of materials consumed by Isuzu
Qingling Engineering when using the Engineering Factory
Premises or the basic service facilities. The total monthly rent
is expected to be RMB101,000, including the monthly fixed
rent of RMB81,000 and the pre-determined monthly float rent
of RMB20,000. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB438,000.
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SRAEEREIL R, RIREMA
BRVER - AR RRPIZERAA
HEMiEFEH—T—+F—A
—AUAREBERE)E_T—1
FTZA=+—R0 RKREREKR
AMBERKRAMLEEZSRESE
E e RARFEAN  NEFERE
RS E R/ ARE,040,000
T o

BRRAFEEATRERRMFAEZ

FER Z B RS AN A T E®R
RHFFE32(v) ©

3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

agreement shall be effective from the date upon obtaining
all relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2019.
The consideration is determined at the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,040,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transaction with

Isuzu Qingling Engineering during the year are also set out in note

32(v) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts:

On 22 December 2016, the company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
entered into the following agreements:

(i)

(ii)

The New Supply Agreement (IQAC), relating to the
provision of parts of engines by Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
to the Company, and the provision of automobiles, parts of
engines and raw materials by the Company to Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts. The agreement shall be effective from the date
upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all
other procedures in accordance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2019. Prices for products provided shall not be
higher than the market prices and shall not be less favourable
than the prices offered to independent third parties. If there
are no comparable market prices, prices shall be determined
based on the actual or reasonable costs incurred (whichever
is lower) plus a profit margin of not more than 8%. During
the year, the purchase amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB2,815,000 and the selling
amount was approximately RMB125,402,000.

The New Consolidated Service Agreement (IQAC), relating
to the provision of certain services (including services
such as water, electricity and gas supply, vehicle rental,
telecommunication and medical and hygiene) by the
Company to Isuzu Qingling Autoparts. The agreement shall be
effective from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals
and/or completing all other procedures in accordance with
all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The consideration
is determined at the actual costs of the Company plus taxes
payable. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB1,013,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts during the year are set out in note 32(vi) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Continuing Connected Transactions:

The Company, Qingling Isuzu Engine, Isuzu Qingling Engineering
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered into the New Testing
Agreement on 22 December 2016, relating to the provision of
certain testing services (including but not limited to smoking tests,
external property tests and combustion analysis tests for full-
loading and steady rolling engines; temperature resistance tests
and heeling tests for vehicles; and endurance tests and vibration
tests for parts) by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine, Isuzu
Qingling Engineering and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts. The agreement
shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all relevant
approvals and/or completing all other procedures in accordance
with all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. Prices for services
provided shall not be higher than the market prices and shall not
be less favourable than the prices offered to independent third
parties. If there are no comparable market prices, prices shall
be determined based on the actual or reasonable costs incurred
(whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of not more than 8%.
During the year, the Company provided the testing services to Isuzu
Qingling Engine, obtaining testing income of RMB1,287,000, and
did not provide the testing services to Isuzu Qingling Engineering
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Isuzu Engine during the year are also set out in note 32(iii)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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The Company’'s auditor was engaged to conduct audit work in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Pursuant to the rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
auditor has issued a letter to the Board of the Company that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group (except those de minimis
transactions which are fully exempted pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules):

1. have not been approved by the listed issuer’s board of directors;

2. for the transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group;

3. were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have exceeded the annual caps set by the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirm that
the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
and usual course of its business, on normal commercial terms or better
and in accordance with the agreement governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

On 2 April 2014, the Company and Isuzu entered into a 600P
emission technology development agreement whereby the
Company engages Isuzu for the technical transformation and
enhancement of 600P series vehicles and engines which the
Company currently produces so that they will meet certain
specified standards for emissions, power rating and torque
rating, including the phase 5 emission standards issued by the
government of the PRC for commercial vehicles. The agreement
shall be effective from 2 April 2014 to the date of obtaining all
approval from the relevant PRC authorities for the manufacturing
and sale of the modified 600P vehicles, and the consideration shall
be JPY110,000,000, which was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the parties by reference to the estimates of
the costs for manpower involved, experiments to be conducted
and use of experiment facilities to be incurred by Isuzu. The
consideration shall be payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manners: 30% of the consideration shall be payable
within 20 days from the date of approval of the executed 600P
emission technology development agreement by the competent
authorities of the government of the PRC; 20% of the consideration
shall be payable within 20 days after receiving the results of
the development and design carried out by Isuzu pursuant to
the 600P emission technology development agreement; and
50% of the consideration shall be payable within 20 days from
the date of obtaining the certification of the vehicles' quality
and emission standard for and the registration of the modified
600P vehicles. On 14 December 2015, the contract amount was
changed to JPY83,000,000. The changes in the time for payment
of consideration are as follows: (1) On 16 July 2014, Qingling
Motors paid JPY33,000,000; (2) JPY9,000,000 was paid by Qingling
Motors within 20 days upon receipt of the development technology
information; (3) JPY41,000,000 was paid within 20 days after the
quality and emission standard of the sample vehicles produced by
Qingling Motors had been certified by relevant national authorities
and been registered in the product announcement catalogue. The
remaining JPY50,000,000 has been settled in the period.
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On 18 December 2015, the Company and Isuzu entered into (i)
the CYH Technology Licence Agreement; (ii) the CYZ Technology
Licence Agreement; and (iii) the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence
Agreement, respectively, in relation to the provision of technology
and technical know-how, staff training and technical assistance and
the licence to use the trademark and the emblem of Isuzu by Isuzu
to the Company for the production and sale of (i) CYH; (ii) CYZ; and
(iii) EXR/EXZ vehicles in the PRC on an non-exclusive basis.

For the CYH Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 10% of the initial fee for each of the sample vehicles
CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of 40% of the initial
fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of completion
of the provision of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by both
the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 5% of the initial fee for each of the
sample vehicles CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

For the CYZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-
how confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii)
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of the CYZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

For the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee
of JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-how
confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 20%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
the bulk production of the EXR/EXZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

The Company will also have to pay royalties to Isuzu in relation
to the sale of each CYH, CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, which are
calculated at 3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle. During
the year, as the Company has not commenced the sale of CYH,
CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, the Company has not paid any royalties

during the year.
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(iii)

(iv)

On 16 February 2016, the Company and Isuzu entered into the
CAN Signaling Technology Development Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company engaged Isuzu to develop the CAN Signaling
System with the corresponding specifications meeting the VC61
series vehicles and the corresponding engines for the 6U National
V and the 6W National V standards. Upon the completion of the
development, Isuzu shall submit the Company with the technical
information and records, the documents with their details and
electronic data during the development based on the provisions
of the CAN Signaling Technology Development Agreement and
the instructions of the Company. The Company shall pay a total
consideration of JPY116,715,427 to Isuzu in the following manner:
(i) JPYB8,357,713 shall be payable within 20 days from the signing
day of the CAN Signaling Technology Development Agreement;
and (i) JPY58,357,713 shall be payable within 20 days from the
completion day of the business development.

No amount was paid during the period.

On 11 August 2016, the Company and Isuzu entered into a
special marketing fee agreement in relation to VC46 heavy-duty
trucks, pursuant to which both parties shall pay 50% of marketing
fee, respectively, only used for product promotion, advertising,
development of new customers, maintenance of old customers,
registration of refitted heavy-duty trucks/special trucks, sales
incentives for distributors, etc. for VC46 heavy-duty trucks in the
period prior to 31 December 2016. The total budget for the special
marketing fee amounted to RMB9,500,000, of which Isuzu shall
contribute RMB4,750,000 and Qingling Motors shall contribute no
less than RMB4,750,000. The special marketing fee shall be first
disbursed by Qingling Motors according to its internal procedures.
Subsequently, Qingling Motors will issue a payment application to
Isuzu which shall pay the amount that shall be assumed by it to
Qingling Motors according to the application. Where the aggregate
amount of the fee exceeds RMB9,500,000, Isuzu shall pay
RMB4,750,000 to Qingling Motors; where the aggregate amount of
the fee is less than RMB9,500,000, Isuzu shall pay 50% of the total
amount of fee to Qingling Motors. The amount of special marketing
fee received from Isuzu in the period amounted to RMB2,858,000.

The details and amounts of the connected transaction with Isuzu during

the year are also set out in note 32(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The information of the related party transactions entered into by

the Group is set out in note 32(i) to (vi) to the consolidated financial
statements. Those related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and the Board confirms that the Company has
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
those transactions.
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FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the five largest suppliers
accounted for 47.45% of the total purchases of the Group. The largest
supplier accounted for 21.14% of the total purchases. Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries, a joint venture of the Company and a Japanese
trading company, through which Isuzu channels its supply of parts and
components to the Group, are included in the five largest suppliers of the
Group. Details of transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and
with Isuzu are set out in the section “Connected Transactions” above.
Other than disclosed above, the Company’s directors and supervisors,
their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital), did not
have any interests in the Group's five largest suppliers for the year ended
31 December 2017. For the year ended 31 December 2017, Qingling
Group was the largest customer. The aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers (except Qingling Group) were less than
30% of the Group's total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company or
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hold any designated deposits
or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be collected upon
maturity.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

B8R A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 2,813 employees (2016: 2,857
employees). During the year, no material change was noted for the
number of employees or their remuneration policy. The Group actively
formulated and implemented various training to its staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s staff retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors and
supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and supervisors
have complied with the requirements of the Model Code during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 48 to 65.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public float as
not less than 25% of the Company's issued shares are held by the public
throughout the year 2017.
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REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and auditors
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board
LUO Yuguang
CHAIRMAN

Chongaing, the PRC
23 March 2018
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The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that good
corporate governance practices are important to promote investors’
confidence and protect the interest of our shareholders. The Company
attaches importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our corporate
policies and standards, which together form the basis of our corporate
governance practices. The Board has adopted sound corporate and
disclosure practices, and is committed to continuously improving those
practices and cultivating an ethical corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for the deviation from code
provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code as stated below.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code, an issuer
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. With regular, timely and effective communications
among the directors and the management of the Group, the management
of the Group believes that all potential claims and legal actions against the
directors of the Company can be handled effectively, and the possibility
of actual litigation against the directors of the Company is relatively low.
The Company will review and consider to make such arrangement as and
when it thinks necessary.

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the
success and sustainable development of the Company. The Board
is responsible for the management of all the important issues of
the Company, including the duties of convening general meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at the general meetings,
determining the operating strategies and investment proposals of the
Company, formulating the plans of the Company for annual financial
budgets and final accounts, establishing and approving the internal control
and risk management systems and monitoring the performance of the
members of the senior management. The directors shall make objective
decisions for the interests of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply
with the new code provisions in relation to board diversity effective from
September 2013.

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company shall
take into account our business operations and select candidates with
appropriate and necessary skills and experience and those who can
express their views in a multi-angle perspective. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates wiill bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Company is comprised
of 10 members, including 6 executive directors and 4 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors account for
over 40% of the number of Board members.

An analysis of the Board based on a scope of diversity perspective is set
forth below:

EEAH 10
Number of Directors .
L
9 TS 1=
Independent
8 Non-executive
Director
7
6 E:
Male
5
4
3
2
1
0
5 B FiRAa R R 55
Sex Position Age Group Length of Service

BERALE ARZBESENRARMERH
BHERARBMITES © PHEXEE - BA
RAITERRATRABERRARTIERHEZ
REMBERARRRITES - ARBR_F
—EFBRRBFRSERUARKREER/LR
BIITES  BEIWEREXEEMBHEZAR
BIITE SRR -

(E-R—t+-A=1T—HILFE  ~QF
EEESMI0REEHEN

Mr. GAO Jianmin, has resigned as an executive Director of the Company
due to his other commitments which require more of his dedication;
Mr. Yoshifumi KOMURA, has resigned as an executive Director of the
Company due to the change of work allocation of Isuzu Motors Limited,
a substantial Shareholder of the Company. Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO was
elected as an executive Director of the Company at the 2017 annual
general meeting to replace Mr. Yoshifumi KOMURA as an executive
Director of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board of the Company is
comprised of 10 directors:
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Executive Directors

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Masanori OTA

Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO

Mr. LI Juxing

Mr. XU Song

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Mr. LIU Tianni

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"“Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and their
re-election is subject to a vote of the Shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE
BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the related
risks and control systems so as to achieve the development objectives
of the Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the executive Directors and the senior management, who are required
to report back to the Board. All the members of the Board have separate
and independent access to the senior management, and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business
and development of the Company, including monthly reports and
recommendations on significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees under
the Board, and will seek independent and professional advices from them
in respect of related matters.
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EFgRRRHESE BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
EEYTHRTEERIARANMBREE The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
RID - WERT AR - R-ZT—+F » AR performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. In 2017,
RIARTSRESTEEH  NMIASESNC the Company held 8 board meetings, and the attendance record of each
Z+FHEESSRHEMNEFELE - director at the board meetings in 2017 is set out below:
BRARHEE
BaHESE FRXB SW|RE(T1)
EE Attendance in person/ Attendance by Proxy/
Directors Number of Meetings Number of Meetings (Note 7)
RiTEE
Executive Directors
BFRGEEFEER) 77 1/1
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
BBE—BRAE 8/8 0/0
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI
SERAEMR T —EF= AT MAEHH) Wi2) 2/2 0/0
Mr. GAO Jianmin (resigned on 24 March 2017) (Note 2)
ANHEIELEE 6/6 2/2
Mr. Masanori OTA
IRERXEERZE—EFRNANBET 3/3 il
Mr. Yoshifumi KOMURA (resigned on 9 June 2017)
WA R EE (R ZE—EFNANBEZD) 3/3 Al
Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO (appointed on 9 June 2017)
FEERLEE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LI Juxing
RN A 8/8 0/0
Mr. XU Song
BIUFRTESE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BEELE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LONG Tao
KRNI 717 1/1
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Bl AE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
BIRIRAEE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LIU Tianni
B (1) BEAARMATSEE—FE= Notes: (1) Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the
£ EEEE TR AR Compeny where 2 Director s unable o sitend the boerd
gé;@?ﬁﬁﬁé$&%tﬂﬁé$ Directo? to attend the board me'etings o¥1 his/her bgehaplf.
A B gy (1 e NS R 2) Prior to the resignation of Mr. GAO Jianmin, the Company held
2 EG;F%E;@%@%;?FH” P ARERITS @ two board meeti%gs. pany

TEHeex | oM EASEAE At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including
INTNEE N L EERERE  EETEE - the Company’s annual and interim financial statements, annual budget,
SYRAER N ARG B R R proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and interim report.
[EFIRE « FiIEESREE AR ESSFRE T At least 14 days' notice is given to all directors for all regular board

HSETHETe e  WAKS BB HREE meetings and all directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
BIA@EER - GATHERTNESee %Y discussion in the agenda. The agenda and board papers for each meeting
SO pEEe TR ELIKRFIE SRS are sent to all directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular board
H.EBEeNMAeRSYRA TIMER meeting. All minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company
& tEEER o secretary and are available to all directors for inspection.
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There is no material financial, business, family, or other relationship
between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. ZOU Guanghua and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed as
company secretaries for PRC and Hong Kong affairs respectively on 27
May 2016 and 28 April 1994. Mr. ZOU Guanghua is a full time employee
of the Company, and works as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He is familiar with the daily routine of the Company.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong and
the senior partner of Tung & Co., the Hong Kong legal adviser of the
Company, and a China Appointed Attesting officer. He holds a B.A.
degree in law and accounting from the University of Manchester, the
United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience as a practicing
lawyer in Hong Kong. Mr. TUNG is also the company secretary of a
number of companies listed in Hong Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is not an
employee of the Company, he has been appointed by the Board to advise
on legal and governance-related issues. The primary corporate contact
person of the Company is Mr. ZOU Guanghua, the company secretary for
the PRC affairs.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the persons who had
been working as company secretaries for the issuers on or before
31 December 1994 shall comply with the requirements in relation to
professional trainings set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules from the
financial year beginning at 1 January 2017. As confirmed respectively by
Mr. ZOU Guanghua and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael, they had taken the
relevant professional trainings for no less than 15 hours during the year of
2017.



SREHEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEREMER

AAFEEEEERRBEEHRIERTHE
HRIRIE £ — BB 5B AT - ATIERREEID )
R -

EERAERENEEEEGNERE AL
REEZFESH  BREFGUTEAARR
EMENTATE - EEREEGZBERES
H2EEEENEBLHEETSNREFLE
B EEEZRMEET ARAEFECHEN
REFNEEREREBMZN - WRIEE TR
HERRRFERBRE

BB BEEARARNBNER  ARHIEEE
MARREE  YHANREREREAESRS
BEEME ARFHIRREMBITEEEE
ROEBHPINITHRERSMBIAE -
FREBNESFTREDTMIE - RERIERT
EBETYERANRSEEMEEE X
HERNARRERNAEEERESSRER
R AARREIEREERNMAESRITAE
B RGPS TRARRMAERNER
BREES  WABERTEERSENITR
BN IEEETRE -

EFSASRERR

AERRENEETORERSBENZIIRE
£ BEREE AR E R EE M AR E A
BRG] &P RAIFER THRIAEER
FrH) T g o

EREIESEBRE - FR - EFREHAR
ARR - MRRARHEAENER  UEE
FERIERREFABITERIS < 1O - AR
REBMEEFE2RFERRER  UER
RERBEMBIXEE - NARTERESERM
AR R DA R L At 38 R B B AR TE WO SRR B R A
o MHEREFETRNEEREATR X
RAHEHRECEERAERNER -

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. LUO Yuguang and Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are two
clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the operations of
the Board, effectively planning the board meetings and ensuring that the
Board is acting in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman shall
proactively encourage directors to fully participate in the Board's affairs
and make contribution to the functions of the Board. The Board, under
the Chairman’s leadership, has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain
effective communication with the shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business of the
Company, as well as formulating and implementing the Company's
policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the overall
management of the Company. The General Manager of the Company
works in close association with other executive directors and the
administration team of each core business division, ensuring the funding
requirements of the business of the Company are sufficiently met and
at the same time closely monitors the operation and financial results of
the Company according to business plans and budgets, and advises the
Board on matters in relation to the Company’s development. The General
Manager of the Company is required to keep close communication
with the Chairman and all directors to keep them fully informed of all
substantive matters relating to the Company’s business development,
and is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the assigned
duties in this position.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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REERHMNLE  ESEE T —tF1+= According to the records provided by the directors, a summary of the
A=+—HIFEEZFIOMEBUT : trainings received by the directors for the year ended 31 December 2017
is as follows:

E= o1l o

Directors Type of Trainings

BiTES

Executive Directors

BFHAEE(EER) A C

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

BIEEE—BRSE A B, C

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI

BERAER 2T —+F= A= +WABT C

Mr. GAO Jianmin (resigned on 24 March 2017)

RHEELEE B,C

Mr. Masanori OTA

INBEXSEERZE—EFRNANART A C

Mr. Yoshifumi KOMURA (resigned on 9 June 2017)

AR KREE (R ZE—+FRNANLBEERT) B, C

Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO (appointed on 9 June 2017)

TEE&RE C

Mr. LI Juxing

WA C

Mr. XU Song

BIUFRTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BELE A B

Mr. LONG Tao

RANTHAE A C

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

2I=FREE A, C

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

PN e A C

Mr. LIU Tianni

BiaF - Notes:

A. HEEN SR ZTE & KwmiE - A.  Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

B. %%ﬁﬁ@&/iﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ@&/@i%ﬁi@ﬁ%%}ﬁ B. Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

C. BEAMLE  —REK ZEFWE LW C. Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to
HESE M EAEERERTEENTSE economy, general business, directors’ responsibilities and the
MBI SRR EFER - Listing Rules or the latest development of other applicable regulatory

requirements.
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R RESGROES -

BOARD COMMITTEES

Three committees have been set up by the Board, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board is responsible for discharging corporate
governance functions as set forth in the Corporate Governance Code.
Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board committees to
undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March 2012
with the terms of reference. The nomination committee is comprised of
four independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr.
SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and Mr. LIU Erh Fei) and one executive
director (namely Mr. LUO Yuguang). Mr. LUO Yuguang, an executive
Director, serves as the chairman of the nomination committee, and
is responsible for the nomination of the Directors. The committee is
delegated by the Board to formulate the policies for the nomination of
Directors and establish the procedures for the nomination of Directors
and the standards for the selection and recommendation of Directors. It is
also responsible for the review of the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the assessment of the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term, a
Director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors are
appointed for a specific term. At the Board meeting held on 24 March
2017, Mr. GAO Jianmin resigned as an executive Director. At the annual
general meeting held on 9 June 2017, Mr. Yoshifumi KOMURA resigned
as an executive Director and Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO was appointed as
an executive Director.

The nomination committee held two meetings in 2017. It reviewed
the structure, number and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendations to the Board on the formulation of board diversity
policy.
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Members

The attendance record of the members of the nomination committee at
the meetings held in 2017 is set out below:

HEE FRRE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITES
Executive Director
BTFRAEE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

BIAFRITES

Independent Non-executive Directors
v

Mr. LONG Tao

RANTIHE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Bl —REE

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIR(R LA

Mr. LIU Tianni

FHEAS

RARERZBERFOA - +HRILT H
ZE88 - HFMEEEHARRNBBILIERT
EFEDRIREFEE  RAVIELE - BT
£ BRERD R —BRTER(ET L
BB - HFME B g EEARIVIHE -

FINZEENBETERRE  QBARAE
EREREEABNZEBHMBER LIRS - &
PhAR L IE AR T B3 B R A2 Fr 1 R S BMERR
MESRFREER  OEREFSATRE
FE B EmRE REE RN MEE
O EEZSBRETCENNMTEERSRE
BEABMFHMEFE  PEFSERMERHR
TEERSREBAENHEHGTE  (EE
[FIREA RIS ER BN - 7815 A0 By ) B B A
REBANEMBANRBESE  (e)iRa kit
FERRTES REREEABREERSRIE
BSREEMASAINEEE - URRZERE
HENRK—B BREESOGRK B &
BRARNTERE - T8 © (s RIER
BERTRREMBRIEBLERMES ISR
BRERHE  NIERZERBFEA DR — 20
EARBBEANER B FRRENAAEE

CRQBIFRTEENFM M ESSRH

=y
==}
s -
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2/2

2/2
2/2
2/2

2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April
2006. The remuneration committee is comprised of four independent
non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr.
LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive Director (namely Mr.
LUO Yuguang). The remuneration committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang.

The main duties of the remuneration committee shall be: (a) to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives; (c)(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group; (e) to review and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) to
review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;
and (g) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration Bands (RMB)

The Company has adopted a model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

0%250,000
250,001%350,000
838350,000

i LB SRERABNEERERE
ZIMOES o

FHZEER T —tHFRBITT2RE#H ot
BIFRTEENF R ESSREZZ LM
ERIRTES REAEEABFEHHEEM
E=gRLES  TIAFMZEEREN
T-EFHFEERNHFELE

154}

Members

AB

Number of persons

0 to 250,000 5
250,001 to 350,000 1
Over 350,000 0

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to those
employees other than directors and supervisors.

The remuneration committee held two meetings in 2017. It made
recommendations to the Board on the remunerations of the independent
non-executive directors and the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. The attendance
record of the members of the remuneration committee at the meetings
held in 2017 is set out below:

HEE FRAN
Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITES
Executive Director
BEFHEE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI E(GFE)

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

2 REE

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRRFRE

Mr. LIU Tianni

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

B8R AR DB BR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

57



58

TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FREAE

ARFER EMRRIKIBZZE@WTHE
BEHE BRZEemIBMFNTES
MK P EE T MY B RERMRE R E
BRI AL - EREREGHR/ NI LRERE
FEX/E - Rt E A BIAREEEL - 8 -RE
ERBIRERALE

ERZEBeNBERESRREEFRERI
BPEATE - BB ARRAMEFIERE
it BEARRNMBEEANLERE  FEA
RAIAEGIE - BERRRREIMNEES 2
HAE -

BERZEER T LHEETT2REeHE  &F
BARR —Z—RFEFEREN_FT—LF
ERMEEREWEREESREMARA RN
BARMNRAREE R AMEERGORA - X
BERAMBERMEBERLESR - TV RER
ZEEMER-ZE—tHFHREEFNHREL

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific terms
of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
is comprised of four independent non-executive Directors, who possess
appropriate commercial and financial skills and experience to understand
financial statements. The audit committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr.
LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties to
recommend the engagement and replacement of external audit firms,
oversee the Company’s internal auditing system and implementation,
verify the Company’s financial information and disclosure, examine
the Company’s internal control system, and take charge and act as a
communication channel between internal and external auditors.

The audit committee held two meetings in 2017. It reviewed the final
results for 2016 and the interim results for 2017 and together with the
Board considered the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and considered that
it is effective and adequate for the time being. The attendance record of
the members of the audit committee at the meetings in 2017 is set out
below:

4] HESE FERE
Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
BIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors

REREE 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao

RANL I (/) 2/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

Bl E 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIR(R &L 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate Governance
set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as the terms
of reference for the Board to perform their duties in relation to corporate
governance on 26 March 2012, which include developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) for the Company’s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2017, the Board has performed the corporate governance function
as mentioned above.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the operation of
all business units under the Company’'s management. It shall appoint
suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards of all subsidiaries
operating in key business areas, attending their board meetings to
oversee the operations of these companies. The management in each
business division is accountable for the operations and performance of
the business within its area of responsibility.

The Company’'s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable laws
and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information are
provided for the Company’'s management for publication purposes and
investment and business risks affecting the Group are identified and
properly managed.

The Board is responsible to ensure a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard investments of
Shareholders and assets of the Group and provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against the risks of material misstatement or loss,
and to manage but not eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

B8R AR DB BR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

59




60

TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ARBEEGELEBF—RBEARE REMN
BRAEANABRERERAMEZERRITE AR -
WEPREAR BRMFEE  EFEE AR
EEkRERERINE EFGNEEARRE
BT RMEERBESTHNER BEINEE
Ko i85 N R % 2 SEDSRIEMFAE FR TR M
KRB \F=ZA-t=HEFS L =KY
—TLEMLERERRS  EEER/AR
AIEREIR RN R AR E & A RURER
RHRERAEBNEE -

ARAER

BRERIE N ERANBER 2R KA EREE -
AR B FEEARIECGE RS RG] FEXIVA
BEEFARUNEE  TREESRAEEE
ERZEeNBZ(ARBERERE) MH
ETARHEBEBERR -

EFRESESTXS

ARBEHRNLETRAME T F#z ETHAF
ERETRESFRZNRESTR(RETRIDIE
REZREFETEFIHRTTA - &R
ERESLEFFLBESHR  IEEERK
EERAN_T-tFEHREE T2 ETE
TR ERRE -

EEw

ARBESEH=-RERMAK  EPHBRE
REREENEEM R BEERLEERBEEL
) ABRIAREENESE -2 EIEMSL
£) BERERTFEAMEALLE K_FT—+
FN - ARBERRATETEERE  RET
BRER - ARBMBINAEED - FHEES
M TEFBIRFHRALEESRE -

3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

The Board review the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries at least once every
year. The scope of a review includes financial control, operation control,
compliance control and risks management functions. The Board will also
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function. As at 23 March 2018, the Board has completed the
aforementioned review for 2017 and the Board is of the view that the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems can properly
and effectively safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and the
assets of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules and has established the inside information disclosure
policy with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and supervisors. After specific enquiry with
all the Directors and supervisors of the Company, all Directors and
supervisors of the Company confirmed that they have completely
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout 2017.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee is comprised of three members, two of
whom are representatives of the Shareholders (namely Mr. GUAN
Jinming and Ms. MIN Qing) and one of whom is the representative of the
staff and workers (namely Mr. LEI Bin). Mr. GUAN Jinming serves as the
chairman of the Supervisory Committee. In 2017, the supervisors of the
Company exercised their right of supervision in accordance with the laws
to protect the legal interests of the shareholders, the Company and the
employees. The details of the work of the Supervisory Committee are set
out in the Supervisory Committee’'s Report in this annual report.



SREHEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

E—EFERITTIREGH TR
TLFHREERNNFELE

E=

Supervisors

The Supervisory Committee held one meeting in 2017. The attendance
record of the members of the Supervisory Committee at the meetings in
2017 is set out below:

HEE FRRB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRARHENES

Representatives of the Shareholders
HEREEEFR)

Mr. GUAN Jinming (Chairman)

BIE 2+

Ms. MIN Qing

RIAKKRHENES
Representatives of the staff and workers
Mr. LEI Bin
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are the
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its
PRC and international auditors respectively. In order to maintain their
independence, these accountants do not take on non-audit work.
The work the external auditors are engaged to perform must produce
measurable efficiency and added value to the Company and should not
cause adverse effect on the independence or independent standing of
their audit function. The remuneration of the auditor is disclosed in the
financial statements.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial year
and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies are adopted and applied and the PRC accounting
standards and systems and International Financial Reporting Standards
are observed, to give a true and fair view of the financial position and
operating results of the Company. The statement of the auditor about
their responsibilities on the Group's financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 66 to 72.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company's interim and annual financial
results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing meetings for
people from the investment community at regular intervals, using the
opportunity to promote investor relations and two-way communication.
The Company, through the investor relations manager, responds to the
information requests and inquiries from the investment community.
The Company also publishes information such as the Company's
announcements and circulars on its website (www.gingling.com.cn)
in a timely manner under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the general meeting
in which the Chairman and directors will answer questions about the
Company's business raised by shareholders. The Company distributes
annual and interim reports to shareholders in a timely manner for their
inspection.

During the year, the Company has convened two general meetings. The
attendance record of directors at the general meetings is set out below:

HEE BEXERE

B= Attendance in person/
Directors Number of General Meetings
BITES

Executive Directors

BFRFTEEER) 1/2
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

ABE—BRAE 2/2
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI

SERAEMR-_ZE—+F=ZA-1+NBEED TiERA
Mr. GAO Jianmin (resigned on 24 March 2017) N/A
RNHELELEE 0/2
Mr. Masanori OTA

IRERXEERZE—EFSANBED 0/2
Mr. Yoshifumi KOMURA (resigned on 9 June 2017)

WA R EE (R ZE—EFANANBEZD) TEMA
Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO (appointed on 9 June 2017) N/A
FEE%4E 2/2
Mr. LI Juxing

BRINSEE 2/2
Mr. XU Song

BIAFRTESE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BESEE 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao

RANT A 1/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Bl kS 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIRIRAEE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the financial year, the Company did not make any amendment to
its constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders of the
Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the objects
of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written request(s),
the Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting of Shareholders as soon as possible. The number of the shares
held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on these shares held by the
Shareholders as at the date of the written requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four months
upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A meeting convene
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be borne by the
Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the Company to
such directors who were in default.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ general
meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be determined
by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have definite topics to be
discussed and specific matters for resolution and shall be in line with the
laws and administrative regulations.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold more than 3% of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice of
shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the temporary
proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a notice
of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not make any
amendments to the proposals included in the notice or add any new
proposals.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director is made available in the website of the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company in writing through Mr. ZOU Guanghua, the
company secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. ZOU Guanghua

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging,
the People’'s Republic of China

E-mail : hk1122@qingling.com.cn

Tel : (86) 23-65264125

Fax : (86) 68830397

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

In 2018, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into enhancing the
standard of its corporate governance according to the ongoing regulatory
changes, development trend of the Company, and feedback opinions
from shareholders, ensuring a stable and healthy growth for the Company
while adding value to shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Z0U Guanghua
Company Secretary

Chongaing, the PRC
23 March 2018
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QINGLING MOTORS
CO., LTD.

(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company incorporated in
the People’'s Republic of China with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 73 to 173, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Estimated impairment of inventories

We identified the estimated impairment of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management judgment required in the estimation
of the net realisable value, which is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB632,989,000 (net of write-down of inventories), as disclosed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. In determining the
net realisable value, the management of the Company considers the
historical selling prices of similar products, the current market conditions,
forecast usage and sale volume of similar products.

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of inventories included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group's forecast usage, selling
prices and sale volume of inventories which are used by the
management in the estimation of the net realisable value;

° Considering the selling prices and sale volume of inventories during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and subsequent to the year end
and comparing this information with the Group's expected selling
prices and sale volume of inventories at year-end date;

° Challenging the assumptions of determining the estimated selling
prices and sale volume of forecast sales with reference to the
current market conditions and historical selling prices and sale
volume of similar products; and

° Comparing the cost of inventories at year-end date with the
estimated net realisable value and checking if adequate impairment
of inventories has been made.
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Litigations

We identified litigations as a key audit matter due to the uncertainty
and judgment involved in determining whether a provision for loss is
considered necessary.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has involved in two material legal
proceedings, the 2015 Litigation and the 2016 Litigation initiated by Bank
A and Bank B (as defined and detailed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements), respectively, for liable for compensation to
these banks which claimed to have suffered losses in respect of credit
agreements entered into between certain customers of the Company
and these banks.

In the 2015 Litigation, Bank A stated that the outstanding credit balance
due from the Company's customer was RMB80 million in aggregate
and the Company's bank balances of RMB79,999,000 have been frozen
since 16 August 2015 according to a civil ruling issued by a court in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), as disclosed in notes 26 and 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

In the 2016 Litigation, Bank B demanded the Company to be liable for
the repayment of the outstanding bank loans of the Company’s customer
falling due in an aggregate amount of approximately RMB54,018,000, as
disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

While the 2015 Litigation and the 2016 Litigation have not yet been finally
concluded in the PRC, the claims against the Company, if materialised,
could result in a significant loss and the frozen bank balances are also
significant to the Group's assets.

Based on the opinion of the Company's external PRC legal adviser, the
directors of the Company are of the view that the Company shall not
be liable for any compensation under the 2015 Litigation and the 2016
Litigation. Accordingly, no provision for losses in respect of the frozen
bank balances and claims have been made.
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Our procedures in relation to the 2015 Litigation and the 2016 Litigation
included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the 2015 Litigation and the 2016
Litigation by reviewing all relevant documents;

° Discussing the 2015 Litigation and the 2016 Litigation with
the Company’s management and external PRC legal adviser to
understand the latest status and obtaining from them the updated
assessments of the possible outcome of the 2015 Litigation and
the 2016 Litigation; and

° Considering the adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.



EREE SR EUETEARBET - T
BT ERAME - RETEREEREE - KA
In -

o BRIMFFEBRREFRBRMEREERS
MBBREFEEAHERRAAER - &
ST RBITEE R 7 LA SRR E LB - PA
RERGEEMEENEHRE - ERR
PEROER -  RRFAES LS
#o e BRER - ERRML - 20
BRAESZ £ - Bt REEHRER
FEMEHAE AR ER SRR
BEZXIR R SR BR 1T B 2R A0 EAHE SRER AL 19
B o

o HERERHAMAAES - ARFHE
EETER  BEMNLFHEEER
ERIEHIMAMMERRER -

o HEEEMERAEBERMISE M RIE
HEFHEE R REN S -

o  HESRANKELESHERNKREN
TR s © IRIBFTERMEHRE - 1
ERBFREEZERFFERBHENEAN
FEEME - T Al BE BB B R B HSE
RERNELTEARE - WREMBH
FHEEATHEN - AL EEZIED
HwETRFBEAEIERAMBRED
MR EE - REBBENTETE - 8
ERTHRMNER - BMINEREENZ
HEDIRE B LTS ERRE - R
- REFBEKIFRATGEERERET

P
REFFEILE o

B Z AR S
Independent Auditor's Report

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is K.W. Yim.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

BE HE

:%—-I:SF a /\¢

+=ZB=+—-H +=A=+—H

LLEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARETFIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

1§~ Revenue 5,073,336 4,633,785

SHERAR Cost of sales (4,151,846) (3,769,839)

E7 Gross profit 921,490 863,946

H AU A Other income 223,597 164,984

HibFIG RIBLFHE Other gains and losses, net 174 (4,017)

DIEREERAR Distribution and selling expenses (226,758) (202,093)

EEER Administrative expenses (232,480) (218,647)

HEE A Research expenses (124,137) (57,324)

DMEEE N ERF Share of profit of an associate 210 208

DhEENREE Share of results of joint ventures 18,611 19,569

ERREIRT Profit before tax 580,707 566,626

FTEfi s M Income tax expense (78,912) (80,577)
FERRTR Profit and total comprehensive

fod=go & income for the year 501,795 486,049
THALTEEERNRTIR Profit and total comprehensive

frama - income attributable to:

RARERBEBA Owners of the Company 496,926 481,287

FEE R Non-controlling interests 4,869 4,762

501,795 486,049

BRRERZEF] Basic earnings per share RMB0.20 RMBO0.19
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—+#E+=A=+—A
At 31 December 2017

RIE—tFE HNZIT—FF
+=RA=+-B +ZA=+—H
At 31 December At 31 December

74

2017 2016
Wz ARBFT AREFr
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
W - BB R Property, plant and equipment 15 755,433 732,984
B LS Prepaid lease payments 16 38,060 39,443
REME Investment properties 17 30,917 32,932
BYAE Intangible assets 18 215,327 241,762
EAH%M“TZ% Interest in an associate 19 7,262 7,052
REEREZHERS Interests in joint ventures 20 498,781 480,170
ELERBEEE Deferred tax assets 21 31,752 27,672
1,677,532 1,562,015
mBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 632,989 587,156
R ST R 0 e L R LKL 5B % Trade and other receivables and
Taf A prepayments 23 624,367 898,980
EWEE Bills receivable 24 2,312,308 1,682,547
B TiEE Prepaid lease payments 16 1,383 1,383
REBABEB=FA 2 Bank deposits with original
RITFER maturity more than three
months 25 1,343,202 3,050,884
IR BRI THEH Restricted bank balances 26 79,999 79,999
RITHER Bank deposits,
RITHEBR LR S bank balances and cash 26 4,250,191 2,434,886
AR ERIR Tax recoverable 18 -
9,244,457 8,635,835
mBRE Current liabilities
BRER - BNEER Trade, bills and other
HA eI payables 27 2,731,936 2,229,961
FERTIE Tax liabilities 21,546 8,000
2,753,482 2,237,961
mENEERE Net current assets 6,490,975 6,397,874
HRERTHAR Total assets less current liabilities 8,068,507 7,959,889
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—+FF+=—A=+—H
At 31 December 2017

RIE—tFE HNZIT—FF
+=RA=+-B +ZA=+—H
At 31 December At 31 December

2017 2016
(ofz3 ABREFT AREFr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
29371 | Capital and reserves
AR Share capital 28 2,482,268 2,482,268
BRASHE K Share premium and reserves 5,276,035 5,176,272
KA R Equity attributable to owners of
A AEILRER the Company 7,758,303 7,658,540
FEE RS Non-controlling interests 304,544 301,349
gana Total equity 8,062,847 7,959,889
ERBAR Non-current liability
RIEWA Deferred revenue 29 5,660 -
8,068,507 7,959,889
FI3EEFI1/3EZEAMBRENRN—Z— The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 173 were approved
F=HA—_+=H %i%”*ﬁt/&&}ﬁﬁgé’%ﬁ 1[ and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018 and
ATIESERERR are signed on its behalf by:
FZEE E= Li Juxing DIRECTOR
#n = Xu Song DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

EYNGE £ N
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ELRE HEOHE FEREG
kx  RFEE FPOES Statutory Discretionary  FREiRH Non-
Share Share  Capital  surplus  surplus  Retained @it controling  HEHH
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total interests Total equity

NEETT NREFT AREFT ARETT ARETr ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
AMBO00  RMBO00  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBUOO  RMBOO0  AMB000
W) R WER)
MNote) — Note 71) (Note 12)

R=E-7"%-A-H At1 January 2016 248,268 1,764,905 572,239 1,001,084 2347 1751573 7574416 298372 7872788
EnEHRiaEhE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 481287 481,287 4762 486,049
ERAR Appropriation for the year - - - 47951 - {4791 - - -
RNZZ-RERERE 2015 inal dvidend paid
(Wizt13) Note 13/ - - - - - (397163 (397,163) - (397163
~EMBRAREIER  Dividend paid by a subsidiary to its
RRRfIRE non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - (1785 (1,785
RZE-NETZA=T—H  At31 December 2016 2482268 1,764,905 572,239 1,049,035 2,347 1787746 7,658,540 301,349 7959889
EnEHRiAEhE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 496926 49692 4,869 501,79
ERAR Appropriation for the year - - - 49,280 - [49280) - - -
RRZE-~ERERE 2016 inal dvidend paid
Wit13) Note 13/ - - - - - (397163 (397,163) - (397163
~BHEATAESESER  Dividend paid by a subsidiary to its
BESGI non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - 1,674) (1,674)
RZE—tETZA=1T—H At31 December 2017 2482268 1764905 572,239  1,098315 2,347 1838229 7,758,303 304544 8,062,847
Wladz: BALABESIER —SEHARK Note: The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of approximately
572, 206 00071(_ FE—NE: ARK RMB572,206,000 (2016: RMB572,206,000) which represents
572,206,00070) X8 - TEEBEEER the excess of the value of the net assets immediately before the
B AEREEAA Tﬁﬁigu mESA establishment of the Company injected into the Company by E#%
HERARAR(ELER] - BIAE AE(EE) AR ATE("Qingling Group” — ultimate holding company
ESEEBRATHEERSESRER T of the Group) and E#2/5E B A7 as part of the reorganisation in
AR REH ﬁ?@afﬁ LAEA—H AWM 1994 which was approved by the State Administration of State-owned
FEHFABN M 0 LB ARD B KB Assets, over the nominal value of the 1,500,000,000 shares issued
Fr#471,500,000,0000% B E E A R # upon establishment of the Company of RMB1,500,000,000.

1,500,000,0007T 2 HHi#B 5
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BZ_FE—t+FF+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

E BE
:%—-I:SF a /\¢
+=ZRA=+—HB +=A=t+—H
LLEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR A& A Profit before tax 580,707 566,626
EAERE - Adjustments for:
AESY N Interest income (172,988) (118,621)
DS N ENEF Share of profit of an associate (210) (208)
DMEBENFEE Share of results of joint ventures (18,611) (19,569)
%H&Eﬁmﬂ@%@)ﬁﬁwﬂfﬁfiﬁﬁ Impairment losses (reversed) recognised
on trade receivables (1,749) 391
FEMREZTERFEE Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value 108,953 79,036
WE - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 48,231 63,071
VAR Amortisation of intangible assets 26,435 25,278
B T S Release of prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 2,015 1,985
HEME  BEREELZ Loss on disposal of property, plant and
EBEFE equipment, net 203 292
i 5 B () #58 Net foreign exchange loss (gain) 527 (1,303)
BEBCHERZ Operating cash flows before movements
REEBRER in working capital 574,896 598,361
FE g (Increase) decrease in inventories (154,786) 99,910
P M R R e LA B LR TE Decrease (increase) in trade and other
FERFIBR D (42 ) receivables and prepayments 276,362 (26,379)
JE IR 5 (452 1) Rt > (Increase) decrease in hills receivable (729,761) 477,801
R - BERER Increase (decrease) in trade, bills and other
HAb R FIEE INCR D) payables 492,591 (182,340)
KREEBERS Cash generated from operations 459,302 967,353
B FEHEE Income taxes paid (69,464) (106,119)
BEES NET CASH FROM
& RHE OPERATING ACTIVITIES 389,838 861,234
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ

BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

E BHE
:%—-I:SF -z /\¢
+=ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H
ILLEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REXH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FARISEBBE=MAZ Placement of bank deposits with original
RITER maturity more than three months (2,230,554) (5,919,365)
RERZIEABHB=EAZ Withdrawal of bank deposits with original
RITIFR maturity more than three months 3,910,396 5,673,988
WM - BB MSE Acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
BYAERENTHHES intangible assets and prepaid lease
payments (66,866) (83,455)
FEWA Interest received 200,828 106,407
ﬁ%%"%% B 5= K Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
BABENSFIA equipment 5,367 713
BAERRUKELE Dividends received from a joint venture - 10,353
AEER 7%5%&%5 Additional capital to a joint venture - (94)
BB EMRBNC WBUSH AL Government grants received related to asset 5,660 -
WRRIFES () RS NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 1,824,831 (211,453)
RERT FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BERRE Dividends paid (397,163) (397,163)
B —FMEBA RN IHERRRR S Dividends paid to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (1,674) (1,785)
MEXEBRARLERHE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (398,837) (398,948)
HeRBASSEMEINBH NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1,815,832 250,833
R—A—HZR&RALEEM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY 2,434,886 2,182,750
DB e B cEREHHESE Effects of exchange rate changes on
the balance of cash held in foreign
currencies (527) 1,303
B+=-B=+—HZ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
HeRASEEY 31 DECEMBER,
EPSRITHER « RITHBERAS represented by bank deposits, bank
balances and cash 4,250,191 2,434,886
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—t+FF A=A —HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

i—?

1. GENERAL

Qingling Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a sino-foreign joint venture
joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing
Cun, Zhong Liang Shan, Jiu Long Po District, Chongqging, the PRC. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
are the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, multi-purposes
vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile
parts and accessories.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is Qingling
Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging, the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effect for the current
year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments’
Leases?

Insurance Contracts?

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Clarification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle’

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new HKFRSs below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are
described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9
are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. All other financial assets are measured at
their fair value at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. ERAHTREEITTEMEE 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

HFEN(FEEMBEREEN]) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(#8) (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)

ERGERRERZTIEREETEEMER New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HER(]|)

FEHMEHEESEAEIRLHMITR(ME) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. NeMEEMNRBEMNS @ BEBGRE . In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
BIZE395% T NMEEEAEEEEERAG an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
BER - BAMBGRS ERLIRBET model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
REREEEBRENHE - EHEES entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
?‘Eﬁﬁ?ﬁggﬁ%ﬁ’\lﬁﬁ EHHBEBEE expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
JE’E’TE&EZ%%%?J%TEE‘WE,HE PN credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
NRBREEERRA ’F?] 1A HE SR LA B A necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses
Boagr ﬂ/,\ ?"Eﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬂ are recognised.

AHEREEREE -

BEAEER -_Z—tF+-_A=+—HKH% Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies
BT AEREBERBEREE ARG ESFEHYL as at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the
JERBEBVBREENESRAIGEGELENAT following potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

BIERE

S EEREE Classification and measurement:

AEBEAERBERBREIERDPHERIE Trade receivables and bills receivable arising from the Group's ordinary
‘:F'Fiﬂﬁfguﬂlﬁﬁmﬁfgqﬂlmﬂ%ﬁtF"W?G course of business in the manufacture and sales of five categories of
W 8BRS AT R B R M B IGR products as detailed in note 6 are classified as loans and receivables
FrEemBEENNRENESREERE E’]% carried at amortised cost: All of these financial assets are held within
BEREATHE - URMEEEIERS REARE a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash

BASHENRNENRSRE - At - I flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
RAAEBMBHREEANEIRE  ZFEMEE outstanding. Accordingly, they will continue to be subsequently measured
WS RSB S ARG T = o at amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.
FrEEMmESmMERERBEGEBLESSE All other financial assets and liabilities will continue to be measured on
AIZ539%% B AIET E MR ELERT £ - the same basis as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

JR1E Impairment

—RiME ' ARREEEHEREEMEHE In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
?E'J%%ﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁﬁﬁfggﬂé R SR AEE the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision
RIERBBTBImEEREIRE - AEE of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's

RHEHN AR 22 R EE N R EAAELR financial assets measured at amortised costs and other items that subject
ERENEE 2 HAREENEEBIBRATE to the impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

&

BEAR T EEHFE - (WA BIZE R T8 E Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the
FEEEEEN @ IREBR - —\F—A— expected credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the
B TR 2R EEES B ERRIERS accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised by Group as
SR EREIVRERH R 2B APTIL N - at 1 January 2018 would be increased as compared to the accumulated
FERHREHERUGHENEHREEBER amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
B -R=_ZT—/\F—F—H  ZEHEZEEHE credit losses provision on trade receivables. Such further impairment
R R E — PR E SR EARTRE R T & recognised under expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
BRI IEEE © retained profits and increase the deferred tax assets at 1 January 2018.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarification to HKFRS 15 in relation to

the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
classifications, as well as licensing application guidance.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of
the Company do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in
the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretation when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows, respectively, by the Group.



2. ERHIIREESITEEMEE
FEAN(EFEMBGRELER])
(¥&)

ERERNRERZTIEREETEEMHR
HHER (1)

BFEMBHEERE 165 A (1)

REEBGFENF 7S AEECHEE
T (REBERAB AN ERIENEERKIE -
EREBMBMEERF 165 AT EHZRE
BENBENEERE BIERAKENFHE
FIEREEESIZE 2R AMEE (W%
BIHERER 2 -

BHABAGEME @ BEMBEREENE
1SR L EARE B G ERF 175 2 A

AEHRE - WEESKHAABEESER

AN - BEPBHEE

F' o

BIZE 1657 2k EZ

I E3APAIHE R F—tF+ A
=t+—B  AEEHE A REREHEAE
AR¥67,817,0007T - NFFHERTZELR
BT AMEERTE  ERATEMBEREENE
1R ARBSHRBERREEREGEME
ZEHENHEAE - BRIFNEREESEH
HE

SN - FE P AR T AT E
M TN -

B TS - 27

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ?#ﬁ% |§ﬁ ;E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—t+FF A=A —HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

i—?

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB67,817,000 as disclosed in note 34. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

U Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The principal accounting policies are set out as below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and
its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate or joint venture, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title have passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to
receive payments have been established.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress and specialised production facilities and
moulds, over their estimated useful lives after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified in
relation to specific production processes are depreciated by reference
to the expected production volume of these facilities and moulds after
taking into account of their estimated residual values.

The estimated useful lives, residual values, the expected production
volume and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finances lease whenever the terms of lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under

operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted for as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element
at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance

that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue, if any, in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans where the
Group's obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

In addition, on 1 December 2017, the Qingling Group established
a voluntary defined contribution enterprise annuities program (the
“Enterprise Annuities"”) in accordance with the Qingling Group's
Enterprise Annuities Plan for its eligible employees (including eligible
employees of the Group). Contributions paid by the Group for its eligible
employees are made based on a percentage of their wages and salaries
and are charged to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Enterprise Annuities. The assets of the Enterprise
Annuities are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Internally generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure (Continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is

recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
o how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported as costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expensed from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-rata
to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees, points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, bills receivable, bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months, restricted bank balances and bank
deposits, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables of the Group are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.

The objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable or
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For loans and receivables measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single
instrument are treated as a single compound embedded derivative
unless those derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are readily
separable and independent of each other.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. VWhen a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of inventories

Impairment of inventories require the estimation of the net realisable
value, which is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost to be incurred to completion and disposal.
These estimates are based on the historical selling prices of similar
products, the current market conditions, forecast usage and sale volume
of similar products. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste or competitor actions in response to severe consumer
product industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of inventories is RMB632,989,000 (2016: RMB587,156,000) (net
of write-down of inventories).

Provision for litigations

As at 31 December 2017, the Company is involved in two material legal
proceedings initiated by banks for liable for compensation to these banks
which claimed to have suffered losses in respect of credit agreements
entered into between certain customers of the Company and these
banks. Based on the opinion of the Company’s external PRC legal
adviser, the directors of the Company are of the view that the Company
shall not be liable for any compensation under these legal proceedings.
Accordingly, no provision for losses in respect of the claims have been
made. Details of these legal proceedings are set out in note 35. These
estimates take into account the specific circumstances of each legal
proceeding and the relevant external advice are inherently judgmental
and could change substantially over time as new facts emerge and each
legal proceeding progresses.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The impairment may arise as a result of changes in debtors’ financial
position. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables is RMB557,616,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB845,000) (2016: carrying amount of RMB854,797,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB2,594,000).

5. REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on goods sold by the Group to
external customers, net of discounts and sales related tax. The following is
an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major products:

S e
—e—t%® T A%
+=A=+—-A +-A=t+—1

L E IHFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

HEFRBERAE Sales of trucks and vehicles 4,787,241 4,413,261
HERBETH R Sales of automobile parts and

accessories 286,095 220,524

5,073,336 4,633,785
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6. SEBBEHE 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

AEBEENEEZERED ARERA & The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of five categories
REAE - 2eeaE - KRB - PRRER of products — light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks,
BNABTMREMY - mEZLEREE DI medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile parts and accessories
ZZDZIS’&ET%V?§$)T%lﬁﬁl«ﬁ%%%ﬁ?z%ﬁ%z and the chief operating decision makers (i.e. the Company's executive
DEBER U B ESE R M AEES directors) also review the segment information by these categories to

allocate resources to segments and to assess their performance.

BEmE  RIEBBEBVBHRELERFESH - Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as

SENA2HRO LT follows:
AR S - FERHEEREEAS Light-duty trucks - manufacture and sales of light-duty trucks
el - EEREEZIEAE Multi-purposes - manufacture and sales of multi-purposes
vehicles vehicles
FRE - FERHER RS Pick-up trucks - manufacture and sales of pick-up trucks
A ERIE - FERHEEFLRER Medium and heavy- - manufacture and sales of medium and heavy-
B duty trucks duty trucks
REEHREE - FEREESRBEEHNL Automobile parts — manufacture and sales of automobile parts
= and accessories and accessories
(i) SBRERES (i) Segment revenue and results
AEEW R FEEIREB R Z2HD FHHTI0 The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
N operating and reportable segment:
BE-_Z—+F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
hER RESH
SYRRE ENE Rt
BYHRE Multi- BFE Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty partsand oy
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

ABRTRL ABRTT ABRTT ARRTT ABMTT ABRFZ
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000

A HkE Segment revenue 2,786,114 953 1,084917 945,257 286,095 5,073,336
L Result

AEFIE Segment profit 331,032 123 126,040 18,523 34,233 509,951
EhERER Central administration costs (171,836)
FIBIA Interest income 172,988
EH11ON Other income 50,609
EmFIGREBLTFE Other gains and losses, net 174
AEEE AR Share of profit of an associate 210
AMEREARER Share of resdlts of joint

ventures 18,611

RSB AR Group's profit before tax 580,707
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6. HEEHE(HE) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) SBPBSREEGE (i) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
HE_Z—R"F+A=1T—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
RER AETH
EDIEDaE ERE Rt
THERE Multi- KFE  Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and e
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Consolidated

ARETL  ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARKTT  ARKTZ
RMB00O ~ RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBO00  AMB000

PG Segment revenue 2,333,580 4,532 1,108,661 966,488 220,524 4,633,785
ES Result
HEHIE Segment profit 283,314 589 162,490 16,020 25,628 488,041
EhEEBA Central administration costs (102,159)
FIBIA Interest income 118,621
EH1ON Other income 46,363
Hﬁm BXFE Other gains and losses, net (4,017)
BNt AN el Share of profit of an associate 208
AMEABARIEE Share of reslts of joint
ventures 19,569
REERTALET Group's profit before tax 566,626

BEr T+t _-_A=1t—HULFEHRES There have been no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31

HEEE (T —RNE - ) o December 2017 (2016: Nil).

LIBNA 2|MO I IR EEH AN I The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments
EENSETRERR o 9IREEZ D IRATH are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
B2FHE mMit\ESREFESEER « FIEUYK Segment profit represents the profit earned from each segment without
A Huplg A - RS RIBLIERE - D5 allocation of central administration costs, interest income, other income,
BNBNENESEEENRIELS o kAT E other net gains and losses, share of profit of an associate and share
R E R AR BB R B tE of results of joint ventures. This is the measure reported to the chief
Et operating decision makers for the purposes of resources allocation and

performance assessment.
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6. SEIEE(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) HPEERAR (i) Segment assets and liabilities
AEBEE,BERIELE N Z2HD AT The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
N operating and reportable segment:
R-EBE—+tF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2017
hER RESH
SYRRE ENE Rt
BEUERE Multi- KFE Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty  purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty partsand #8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

ARBTFT ABRTT ARRTT ARBTT ABBTT ARRTT
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000

BE Assets
HHEE Segment assets 1,676,184 7,021 652,143 1,188,140 535010 4,058,504
Az RLBREE Interchangeably used assets
between segments
-0% - BEREE — property, plant and
equipment 195,195
-BLiHE - prepaid lease payments 39,443
-FE —inventories 120,888
REME Investment properties 30,917
FH@%%’&‘TZ%M Interest in an associate 7,262
REDAZER Interests in joint ventures 498,781
E%Uﬂ%m B BORRRBOER Restricted bank balances, bank
deposits and bank balances 5,673,392
EtfaniiEE Other unallocated assets 197,607
GRBAE Consolidated total assets 10,821,989
af Liabilities
par =N Segment liabilities 385,468 138 151,602 97,917 - 635,125

TSR ENER - ERREREMENFE Unallocated trade, bills and

other payables 2,096,811
HAAAEE AR Other unallocated liabilities 21,206
mRfBfE Consolidated total liabilities 2,759,142
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6. SEIEE(E) 6.
(i) SBEERARM® (ii)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

RZE—RF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2016

i) RESH
ZeE S BHE P&l
THERE Multi- KFE  Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and &h
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Consolidated
NREFT  ANRETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000
BE Assets
PEEE Segment assets 1,334,347 317471 355,018 1,013,186 607,390 3,627,412
AU FLREE Interchangeably used assets
between segments
0% BERRE - property, plant and
equipment 173,496
-Etife — prepaid lease payments 40,826
-FE —inventories 122,981
&ﬁ%% Investment properties 32,932
N YNGR £ Interest in an associate 7,052
REERT R Interests in joint ventures 480,170
SRHFE TS « B RETES Restricted bank balances, bank
deposits and bank balances 5,565,769
E R pEEE Other unallocated assets 147,212
RARBEE Consolidated total assets 10,197,850
BfE Liahilities
HHEE Segment liabilities 364,782 733 171,479 115,603 = 642,597
TAREEAES  BNZEREERFE Unallocated trade, bills and
other payables 1,587,364
At A ARz B Other unallocated liabilities 8,000
GRBARE Consolidated total liabilities 2,237,961
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B E—tFf A= —HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

S EEFE (R)
S EBRER AR ()

FBEEHSIELERAIZHHE -
WD R ZRHREE - REWE - RN
BREZER MNAEERRZHERE X
REIRITAEER - SRITHERRRITAR N
Hit A RARHAE 2 T DR EER
A R

FERBEINEEEERATZ2RN
WA DR BNESR - [ENRERE
ENRIEBERARRZEM T SRR
ERRSN o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

° All assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments other
than interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
properties, interest in an associate, interests in joint ventures,
restricted bank balances, bank deposits and bank balances and
other unallocated assets held by the head office; and

o All liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than unallocated trade, bills and other payables and other
unallocated liabilities of the head office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. SEIEE(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(iii) HtoEEH (iii) Other segment information
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
EWESE PURENE RESHRBH
BUERE Multi- K+¥  Mediumand  Automobile
Lightduty  purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and AR ]
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Unallocated  Consolidated

ABRTE  ABRTT  ABRFT  ABRTT  ABRTT  ABRFT  ABRTT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

Rft#EH OTHER INFORMATION
TASBBRYATEE Amount included in the measure of segment
188 profit or loss or segment assets:
TENE  BERFE Addtions to property, plant and equipment 233 - 590 10,340 - 65,087 76,250
TEEVAE Additions to intangible assets - - - - - - -
TERM LS Additions to prepaid lease payment - - - - - - -
By AERE Amortisation of intangible assets - - - 23,326 - 3,109 26,435
% BERRERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14310 180 8,461 11,555 - 13725 48231
REMZAE Depreciation of investment properties - - - - - 2,015 2,015
Bt Release of prepaid lease payments - - - - - 1,383 1,383
BHE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2016
Ll PHRERE AETERIH
gdnERs Multi- FFE  Medumand  Automobile
Light-duty PUTpOSES Pickup  heavy-duty parts and MIAE Fa
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Unallocated  Consolidated
ANREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFr AREFT ARETL
AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000
EfEs OTHER INFORMATION

SANDBESATEEZEE + Amountincluded in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

TENE  BERR Additions to property, plant and equipment 10,369 - 12,956 23,892 - 751 47974
BRTiESEN Additions to prepaid lease payment g 5 = = = 1 1
TEEWEE Addtions to intangible assets - - - 130,010 = = 130,010
BYEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets - - - 22,170 - 3,108 25278
0% BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 23322 316 14,867 720 = 17,354 63,071
REMERE Depreciation of investment properties = = - - - 1,985 1,985
B Ll Release of prepaid lease payments = - = = 5 1,383 1,383
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A2 —F—F+—H=1—HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. SEMEHGE)
(iv) MESH

REEBEARE,545,780,0007C (- F—7<
&0 ARME1,534,343,0007T) Z 3ERBEE
(BIELERBEAENINEEZERRH - AXEEZ
BAIBDEENE FNRPE TS - NEH
B RFRBEEIERIEE DEHOHEE - HAX
EEUALI0.06% (ZZF—7<4 : 0.04%) °

(v} FREREFRZHEH

hESKEEREKBRATIRESXRAT&(E
BB ER AR (BRI %] - K
PNEIREREDIN - BB — IR RURA
EAREBMPAI0% KA c BHE-F—+4F
+ZA=+—HIEFE REEREEREN
BARlZWAABAR1,480,754,0007 (=%
—NF 0 AR¥E1,463,984,0007T) K AR B B $4
AR EHIE Z WA B ARKE628,635,0007T
(ZZ—RF : AR¥871,956,0007T) °
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(iv)] Geographical information

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the Group
amounting to RMB1,545,780,000 (2016: RMB1,534,343,000) are located
in the PRC and substantially all of the sales of the Group are also made to
customers located in the PRC. The Group has made limited export sales
to countries outside the PRC which accounted for approximately 0.05%
(2016: 0.04%) of the Group's revenue.

(v) Information about major customers

No revenue from a single external customer other than Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries and B #5185 (EE) & & AR A ("Qingling Isuzu
Engine”, the Company's joint venture) contributed 10% or more of the
Group's revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,480,754,000
(2016: RMB1,463,984,000) and revenue from Qingling Isuzu Engine
amounted to RMB628,635,000 (2016: RMB871,956,000).
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7. FERIH 7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BE BHZE
:@_tﬁ 7 /\¢
+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABREFT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
BNEAR IR Current tax 79,182 92,272
BEFEERE Under provision in respect of prior years 3,810 2,233
BRI (H7721) Deferred tax (Note 21) (4,080) (13,928)
78,912 80,577

$M%%%TA§ME%ﬁ%%ﬁW%@@%
BRORE) BRMBERBRBANE2012F 5
mfﬁwﬁ%m&%@ﬂﬁﬁaﬁwl%%ﬁ
MR EZESSEI55) LRI
iﬁ$¢l&ﬁﬁmﬁﬁiﬂﬁiﬁmﬁ§
B AR A BEELL BB BT70% A
ZH15% M ERD %%\MGmiﬁmem
Ko ARBIRARTIZHBAREEEREA
BRAR(EREADFBEZBNEEREAN
MBSEAFTERSBIEESE  WARFETE

EBWABBELEESS B WA BEELLfZE
70% @ WEBRNANFEZHERLERER
FHE15% °

ARBIZHMBAREEEREITHL(ERE
WL R E—E—+E+—A=+—HIF
FEL25% (ZF—"F 1 25%) T KGR
ES iRy

According to the Notice of the Enterprise Income Tax for Implementation
of Exploration and Development of Western Region (Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation No. 12 [2012]) and the Catalogue of Industries
Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region (Order of the National
Development and Reform Commission No. 15), companies located in the
western region of the PRC and engaged in the businesses encouraged
by the PRC government are entitled to the preferential enterprise income
tax (“EIT") rate of 15% if the operating revenue of the encouraged
business in the current year accounted for more than 70% of the total
income. The Company and EEEREEFR AT (“Qingling Moulds”),
a subsidiary of the Company, are engaged in the encouraged businesses
included in the related notice and catalogue and the total revenue of their
major businesses for the year accounted for 70% of their respective total
revenue, and therefore continue to enjoy the preferential EIT rate of 15%
for the year.

EEERFEME L ("Qingling Technical Center”), a subsidiary of the
Company, is subject to EIT rate of 25% (2016: 25%) for the year ended
31 December 2017.

B85 /AR A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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7. FRSSTH (4)

AEFELEZBBANFAERR IEMEEK
SR ZBHRADEMTFAAT ZAE

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as follows:

BE HZE

—Z—t#f ZE—RF

+=ZRA=+—B +=—A=+—H

]af::3 IHFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ABRETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

R A g A Profit before tax 580,707 566,626
J«/{‘*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/a B E15%T 8 2 BiE Tax at the applicable income tax rate

(ZZ—R"F : 15%) of 15% (2016: 15%) 87,106 84,994

ERGHRELRc BRZRGTE

ERRASE 2 BN M (Y at)
MEAR RN Rz ZE
DIEBE R BNEN 2 8
Nt UNCIES k-7

BIEFERBETR
REZ 2 A

BiaE - BEBREBARER  HRAMEENERA
REBINEERAB0RINT  HE-Z
—EFT A=+ —BHIEFE - EREBH
FzEe @A AR 310,000t (=T —7<
& AR#¥4,299,0007T) °

3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 96 406
Additional tax benefit applicable to the

Group (Note) (9,310) (4,299)
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary 34 209
Effect of share of profit of an associate (32) (31)
Effect of share of results of joint

ventures (2,792) (2,935)
Under provision in respect of prior years 3,810 2,233
Tax charge for the year 78,912 80,577

Note: Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research
nature are deductible at 50% of the cost incurred additionally. The
related tax benefit is amounted to RMB9,310,000 (2016: RMB4,299,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017.



8. EFiEFIRTE

AEEEEFLIERARERERE—ER
e o Bt AEEBREREBEREEE
AEEETHAMBRFEENR £1m§%$
STEIFTEH AR - ARIBMAREEE - AR

FEANBETRAEERAERRES S H— %m;
T2HTETELOIZFE - AFEIRIEAER
TR BT RSN E A AR36,860,000
JL(ZZ—7~F : AR¥37,858,0007T) °

AN - RIEEREENCEFSHE] - BEX
EER-_ZT—+F+-_A—HBRI—HERREMKE
THRERZCEFSAFGTE(EFS])
ARFARENET (REALEMNAEKET)
REFSFE - RECEFSHRGH - &%
EAEEERETIHMNNERSENIAENETT
BTN WARRESERERNEELLRS
BRMEMEARGSERPIY - bEFE2E
EBEVRAER  f—BUEEESEE &
EF@?H%?%F%E%&%W%%EAE
#3,661,000L(ZF—ARF : T) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—t+FF A=A —HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

i—?

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding company,
Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the contributions
made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution pension scheme
administered by the municipal government in respect of the staff of the
Group. According to such scheme, the Company shall pay an amount
annually, calculated at a percentage of the total wages of the staff,
to a retirement fund administered by the municipal government. The
amount charged to profit or loss during the year under such arrangement
amounted to RMB36,860,000 (2016: RMB37,858,000).

In addition, on 1 December 2017, the Qingling Group established
a voluntary defined contribution enterprise annuities program (the
“Enterprise Annuities"”) in accordance with the Qingling Group's
Enterprise Annuities Plan for its eligible employees (including eligible
employees of the Group). Contributions paid by the Group for its eligible
employees are made based on a percentage of their wages and salaries
and are charged to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Enterprise Annuities. The assets of the Enterprise
Annuities are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The amount charged to profit or loss during the year
under such arrangement amounted to RMB3,561,000 (2016: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

9. FRIRAIET

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

B6E g
k-l 3 —ERF
+ZB=+-H +ZA=1+-H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARBFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BRAEATERI 2 kR : Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:
e REMENZ Y Salaries and other payments and benefits 214,110 186,237
RIKEFIF IR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 40,421 37,858

BEIRA(REESZRE=ME WH10) Total staff costs (including directors’ and

supervisors' remuneration (note 10)) 254,531 224,095
REEFERMEE B TR Staff costs capitalised in inventories (80,187) (66,773)
174,344 157,322

HENE  BERSEBEBE  F8 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
net 203 292
EREESN Amortisation of intangible assets 26,435 25,278
WE - BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 48,231 63,071
A REERERE Less: Capitalised in inventories (20,762) (44,608)
27,469 18,463
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

9. RRIRATEF (&) 9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)
S Bz
—Z—tf —ZRF
+ZA=+-HB +=ZA=1+-H
Jl3:3:4 HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABEFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB 000
REAMENE Depreciation of investment properties 2,015 1,985
BB eEH Release of prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
RERENEREERE SERERT Minimum lease payments under operating leases
in respect of rented premises and production
facilities 36,011 36,574
il e Auditor's remuneration 2,735 2,902
FEWGUEE (B ) R R B 1B Impairment losses (reversed) recognised on trade
receivables (1,749) 391
WREE W) Write-down of inventories (Note/ 108,953 79,036
I 5 () 185 Net foreign exchange (gain) loss (377) 3,725
HRABX 2 FERA Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales 4,042,893 3,690,803
REEA and after crediting:
HEBERKIA Sales of scrap materials 250 19
BITER R R FIBHA Interest income from bank deposits and balances 172,988 118,621
HRREWME WA Income from renting of investment properties 6,213 6,076
B FRNEEHENACRENEERCXER Less: Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated rental income
during the year (2,295) (2,056)
3,918 4,020
DHREARTEREZBA Income from renting of moulds and tooling
equipment 39,641 38,402
DdREEn! Government grants 2,632 384
His : REBREAEBETEME  E2 % Note. The write-down of inventories were made for certain of the Group's
REKMIERFERR  MARREZEER raw materials, work-in-progress, and finished goods at the end of the
B WMBEENSETEABEA KK reporting period which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
ERR o are expected to be realised at amounts lower than their costs in the
future sale.

B85 /AR A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 117




n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ |3ﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE—F—+F+ - H=+—HIFFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

10. E¥  -EFERITHAZM< 10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
BE-E-tEtZBSt-ALER BE-T-E2ACT-AILER
Year ended 31 December 2017 Year ended 31 December 2016
Hike s
(770 W) RIER
Performance  HHHEE Perfomance  3fEILR
FeR related  Retirement 2R related  Retirement
AR incentive benefit EWER incentive benefit
W& Salariesand  payments  scheme &t #%  Selariesand  payments scheme &
Fee  other benefits (Notg] ~contributions Total Fee  other benefits (Note)  contributions Total

ABRFT  ABRTT  ABRFT  ABRFR  ABRTT  AEETT ARETT ARETT AR AEETR
RUBDO0  RWBYIO  AWBU  AMBUO  AMBYM  AUBUD  AMBON  AWBUW  AUBOO)  AMBUD

UEs Executive directors
BRRH-5-~FTA-TZAEZD) LU0 Yuguang lapointed on 22 December
2016) - 5N - 55 626 - 15 - 1 16
ABEER 575~ ATRARZR) Masanori OTA [appointed on 15 June 2016) - - - - - - - - 4 4
IREXMZS-AERATREEEAR  Yoshifumi KOMURA (appointed on 15 June
i Eff) 2016 and resigned on 9 June 2017) - - - - - - - - 4 4
—CERFNBERR) Etsuo YAMAMOTO (appointed on 9 June 2017) - - - - - - - - - -
*/’ﬁ/’\ﬂﬁﬁ%@ﬂ XU Song (apgoined on 15 June 2016) - 47 - 5 509 - Yo - 4 2%
HE Yong (resigned on 26 September 2016) - - - - - - 399 - 6 405
Keiichiro MAEGAKI - 339 - - 339 - - - 8 8
SERM-F-tF=A-TRAER) GAO Jianmin fresigned on 24 March 2017) - 14 - - 14 - %7 - 8 465
EWW\_a -nENATRARE) Makoto TANAKA fresigned on 15 June 2016) - - - - - - - - 4 4
sé/ﬂ' NERAZTLREA) ZENG Jianjang (resigned on 27 May 2016) - - - - - - 19 - 4 194
(RH-Z B Naoto HAKAMATA fresigned on 15 June 2016) - - - - - - - - 4 4
LI Juxing - 457 - 5 509 - 47 - 8 465
- 1938 - 159 2097 - 1,766 - 5 1821
BUHUAES Indgpendent non-executive directors
e LONG Tao 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
RINT SONG Xiaojiang 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
YRk LIV Tianni 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
4% LIV Erh Fei 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
490 - - - 40 480 - - - 480
EBH Supervisors' remungration
R MIN Qing - 4 107 52 205 - I 106 8 160
£y LEI Bin - & 9 kil m - 1Y) 9 8 149
B2H GUAN Jinming - 4 106 55 207 - 4 107 5 158
- 134 31 138 584 - 134 312 Al 467
480 202 3 97 3,161 480 1,900 31 76 2,768
Kt : ThiERE TWRELEEMRERERRET - A Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference
SMEEe (B TESERMNEBE I to the individual performance of the supervisors and approved by the
HNITESHMK) B © Remuneration Committee (composed of an executive director and four

independent non-executive directors).
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10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI is General Manager of the Company and also
assumes the role as the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include that for services rendered by him as
the Chief Executive.

Save as Masanori OTA, Yoshifumi KOMURA and Etsuo YAMAMOTO,
neither directors nor supervisors waived their emoluments for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017.

The emoluments of the Company’s other executive directors are paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The emoluments of the Company’s independent non-executive directors
are mainly paid for their services as directors of the Company.

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group for 2016 and 2017 are
directors and supervisors of the Company.

For both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

11. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation of 10%
of profit after tax for the year of the Company, calculated in accordance
with relevant Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in the
PRC ("PRC GAAP") and the Articles of Association of the Company.
The appropriation may cease to apply if the balance of the statutory
surplus reserve fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
Company. According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses
or to increase capital. The Company may capitalise the statutory surplus
reserve fund by way of bonus issues provided that the remaining amount
of statutory surplus reserve fund after such distribution shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital of the Company. The amount shall be
submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for approval.
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12. BAEELRE

TE L ERERREAFEEEEATES
(ZB—RF &\ - /\Eﬁﬁz,sw,ooo;ﬁz&
ERESEBRANBAREREARNBEFE
BhREARETRAARESRELAMSER
B BB ETES BT 2 -

12. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS
RESERVE FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund in 2017
(2016: Nil). The balance of RMB2,347,000 in the discretionary reserve
fund was the amount appropriated by a subsidiary, Qingling Moulds, in
previous years at a percentage of the profit after tax of the respective
years in accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of Association of
Qingling Moulds.

13. BBE 13. DIVIDENDS
BE HZE
—Z—+tf ZE—RF
+=ZB=+—H t=—A=+—H
LR IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABR#TFIT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERNERED IR ZEE Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
T RNFRPKRE  DIREKRAREO. 16T 2016 Final, paid - RMB0.16
(_7 NE IR -RFRERE (2016: 2015 Final, paid - RMBO0.16)
Bk —8RARK0.167T) per share 397,163 397,163

RMEHKRE  ARREZTEEEINEZS
T+ F+ A=+ HULEFERERES
EAREO0.167T - FAREE397,163,00070(=
T—RFEHEZ T*/\i*FZHEJr*El
IFFERPIREEBRARK 67T HARE
397,163,0007T) * ZBAE A% R PA FEJE ISR B X
eHEBRFRIIEE -
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB397,163,000 or RMBO0.16 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: final dividend of RMB397,163,000 or RMB0.16
per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016) has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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14. BEREF 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AAEEEFA ARESRERBFIRE T The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
BRETHE - of the Company is based on the following data:
2% Earnings
BE HE
:g_t$ 7 /\ﬁE
+=-B=+-H +=ZA=+—H
ILEE WFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ESRERRF 2 ZF Earnings for the purpose of basic
(R DEERFA ANEIEFER) earnings per share (Profit for the
year attributable to owners of the
Company) 496,926 481,287
B E Number of shares
BE HE
:g_t$ 7 /\ﬁE
+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
ILEE WHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
T T
‘000 ‘000
R ESRERRF 2 RHEE Number of shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268

R A BIEFT Y FRE S 1 E 3 TR N No diluted earnings per share were presented as there were no potential
LA - A E 25| S EE AT o ordinary shares in issues in both years presented.
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BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

15. Y% - BER &R 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
- &l
BERBE RERRR
Moulds,  Furniture, RE  EERIE
#F plantand fixtures and Motor Construction it
Buildings  machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTE ARETLT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL
RMB000  RMB000  AMB000  RMB000  RMB000  AMB'000

B¥E cosT
WZZ—"F-A—H At 1 January 2016 641,672 3,560,522 67,900 21,333 52,776 4,344,203
NE Additions - 84 - - 47,890 47,974
ERAEEIR Transfer from construction in progress 7,380 64,575 - 470 (72,425) -
HE Disposals - (5,005) (1,363) (1,706) - (8,074)
RZZ—"¥+-A=+—H  At31 December 2016 649,052 3,620,176 66,537 20,097 28241 4,384,103
NE Additions 67 3,640 - - 72,543 76,250
EREERTIR Transfer from construction in progress 4213 39,263 6 57 (43,539) -
HE Disposals (3,641) (17,604) (16) (1,593) - (22,854)
“Z—+F+-A=1+—H  At31 December 2017 649,691 3,645,475 66,527 18,561 57,245 4,437,499
HERRE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
R-E—~"E-A-A At 1 January 2016 409,025 3,106,445 65,368 14,279 - 3595117
FENERE Depreciation provided for the year 24,080 36,439 813 1,739 - 63,071
HE R Eliminated on disposals - (4,365) (1,227) (1,477) - (7,069)
R-Z—A"E+-A=+—H  At31 December 2016 433105 3,138,519 64,954 14,541 - 3651,119
EENERE Depreciation provided for the year 23,504 21,811 1,366 1,550 - 48,231
& Eliminated on disposals (3,051) (12,784) (15) (1,434) - (17,284)
“ET—+E+-A=+—H  At31 December 2017 453558 3,147,546 66,305 14,657 - 3,682,066
REfE CARRYING VALUES
WZZ—~5+-A=+—H  At31 December 2016 215,947 481,657 1,683 5,556 28,241 732,984
“E—+%+-A=+—-H  At31 December 2017 196,133 497,929 222 3,904 57,245 755,433
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b BMEERRBEERZIENEREE
R R ERINH G A KA RISBEERIZ
THEEAHE RF U ERETIATE

{&&t FE

T FsEHA B

BF 204F 10%

HE - BE Kkikas 5Z&104F 10%
(EREERER

BERRIN
B - KB R RE b4 10%
RE 54 10%

RER A ERARNNEREERELEA
(BRENER - BB kR H2Z U FRHE R
BANFETEESTUNE - f—REEMR
MEMER - WEMEEABRENESE10
FHEF R AFRANE -

R-ZT—+tF+-A=+—8  EEZE:S
AR¥95616,0000L(ZF—RF : AR
97,537,0007T) M A M B HAE AT E
WA o

NZEBE—+E+-A=+—H  REKEE
AR#¥3,624,375,000L(ZF—~F : AR
3,609,614,00070) KI¥% ~ BRE MEED BEE
WEBIEFER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZ_FE—t+FF+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and moulds,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value, as follows:

Estimated Residual

useful lives value

Buildings 20 years 10%

Moulds, plant and machinery (other than specialised 510 10 years 10%
production facilities and moulds)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%

Motor vehicles 5 years 10%

Specialised production facilities and moulds included in moulds, plant
and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific production
processes are depreciated by reference to the expected production
volume of these facilities and moulds. Other moulds, plant and machinery
which are for general production purposes are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2017, the moulds and machinery with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB95,616,000(2016: RMB97,537,000) was leased
out for rental income.

As at 31 December 2017, property, plant and equipment with original
cost of RMB3,624,375,000 (2016: RMB3,609,614,000) have been fully
depreciated but still in use.
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BHE2—F—+F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

16. Wfttivia& 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

R=B—tE AT
+=A=+-B t-A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARHTFIT ANEHTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEREN T HHS IS - The Group's prepaid lease payments
represent:
AR B A P EA (s AR A Land use right in the PRC held under
medium lease term 39,443 40,826
HMEME A Analysis for reporting purpose as:
ERBEE Non-current asset 38,060 39,443
MENEE Current asset 1,383 1,383
39,443 40,826
17. BEOE 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E—+tf NS
2017 2016
ABR#¥TFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(5% COST
R—A—BE+ZA=+—H At 1 January and 31 December 145,915 145,915
e DEPRECIATION
R—A—H At 1 January 112,983 110,998
FENERE Depreciation provided for the year 2,015 1,985
Wn+=—A=+—H At 31 December 114,998 112,983
IREE CARRYING VALUES
g ==t F At 31 December 30,917 32,932
DA EYEMNTER - HEB AT EHAR - The above investment properties are situated in the PRC held under
TS RIBET RIS EBEMN10% B WA R KA medium leases term and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 20
D20FEHTE years, after taking into account the estimated residual value of 10%.
BRI E LR MRS - BXWEmE b The fair value of the investment properties cannot be reliably measured as
ShEeT  EPLIREME S AR BEKRELR the comparable market transactions are infrequent and alternative reliable
SEAtE o estimates are not available.
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BZ_FE—t+FF+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

EEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
SEEERK
BREHE Production
Technology management #gt
transfer fees system Total
AREFT AREFT  AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000
%3 COST
RZE—RF—H—H At 1 January 2016 405,561 31,090 436,651
NE Additions 130,010 - 130,010
RZE—RF+—A=+—H At 31 December 2016 535,571 31,090 566,661
NE Additions - - -
—E—+F+-f=1+—H At 31 December 2017 535,571 31,090 566,661
e AMORTISATION
RZE—RF—-A—H At 1 January 2016 293,403 6,218 299,621
FEEE Provided for the year 22,169 3,109 25,278
RZE—RF+=—A=+—H At 31 December 2016 315,572 9,327 324,899
FEEE Provided for the year 23,326 3,109 26,435
RZE—tF+=—A=+—H At 31 December 2017 338,898 12,436 351,334
IRE{E CARRYING VALUES
RZE—RF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2016 219,999 21,763 241,762
—+E+=-A=+—A1 At 31 December 2017 196,673 18,654 215,327

RBEANRIZRRATRABDERASH
(T 52 1) AT SZ A B 88 8 177 38 0 S A A el

EREN-FFNREEDENMCRETLEE -

WIREFFAMERFRNF T F2+ = F#H
BEAMTAREERGES o RIBERMERE R

FRAT TR ANBFERIRELRRNE
HRH °

i?‘giﬁ%% IR AT RAS R AR AR R R4
BN ERHEFR D109 o

R-ZT—+E+-F=+—8 EFEENHA

A ARE271,333,0007T(ZTE— 754 -
AR#271,333,0007T) B 5  E i S5 B 0 7E(E
)EH o

Payments of technology transfer fees, lump sum royalties under
technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”, the
substantial shareholder of the Company), are capitalised as intangible
assets and are amortised over the license period ranging from ten years
to thirteen years, commencing from the use of the technologies in
production. Continuing royalties payable to Isuzu under the technology
transfer agreements are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred.

The production management system has an estimated useful life of ten
years and is expected to generate economic benefits to the Company in
the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2017, intangible assets with an original cost of
RMB271,333,000 in aggregate (2016: RMB271,333,000) have been fully
amortised but still in use.
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BHE2—F—+F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

AEEREE QAR 2 ERFBIT Details of the Group's interest in an associate are as follows:
RIB—tFE HZZT—KF
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AR®FIT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE AT 2B - K ETH Cost of investment in an associate,
unlisted 6,333 6,333
DB N T Z R E Share of post-acquisition profit of an
associate 929 719
7,262 7,052

R-E—+&ER-T—AE+-A=+—H
78 B 5B A R A S

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had an interest in the

following associate:

FRERE #HZ

ZRELH RRELA
BRSINE  EEEEHE Proportion of Portionof ~ EEXH
i E4] REER Place of Principal place  equity interests ~ voting power  Principle
Name of entity Form of entity establishment  of operation held by the Group held activities
ATRER (ER) AERMAEERAA il i HE 25% 2% iR
(BT 8RERHRTT) Incorporated The PRC The PRC Technical

ATHER(ER) TERITREERAT development

("Isuzu Qingling Engineering”)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2—F—+F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Summiarised financial information in respect of the Group's associate is
set out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using equity method in these consolidated
financial statements.

RIZB—tE R-TRF
+=ZRA=+—R +t-A=1—H

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARBFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
mENEE Current assets 28,187 27,784
JEMBNEE Non-current assets 3,772 2,524
nea s Current liabilities (2,912) (2,101)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities - -
BEFE Net assets 29,047 28,207

REBEREREEREE LA Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest therein 25% 25%

AEBD L E QT EEFE Group's share of net assets of

an associate 7,262 7,052
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BHE2—F—+F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

19. REBAEARIZES (18) 19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)
BE HE
ZE—+tE “T—REF
+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
ILEE IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABREFT AREFor
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wiz Revenue 14,251 14,654
FRENRERE W85 Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 840 830
FREHERFUERRE Dividend received from the associate

during the year - -

REESEEE R RIER Group's share of profit of an associate 210 208
20. REELEZER 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

R=B—tE T AE
+=A=t+-B +-A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARBFIT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

AEPEIIRERA - RKEW Cost of investment in joint ventures,
unlisted 368,639 368,639

DMEEEREWEEES Share of post-acquisition results of

joint ventures 130,142 111,531
498,781 480,170
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BZ_FE—t+FF+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

REBLEZES (1] 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
RNZE—tFER_ZE—"FF+-A=+—81" As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interests in the
AEBERTIEECEPEEES following joint ventures:

FREBEL BEZ
HELH RRELA
EBERRR EMSItE FEERME Proportion of Proportion ~ FEEH
{240 Form of business  Place of Principal place  equity interests ofvoting  Principal
Name of entity structure establishment  of operation held by the group power held  activities
ERATREHE RaijAv HE e 50% 50%  EEMRIEEEHD
Qingling Isuzu Engine Incorporated The PRC The PRC g
Manufacture of
engines and
relevant parts
BERATRER) AEHERBERAA RaiiAv HE HE 50% 50%  RTREEATEREHE
(BRAHHEE) Incorporated The PRC The PRC fise

ERDTR(ER ERERBERAT

("Qingling Isuzu Sales")

BHEATHREIUN —_TBT+FRAKT - =
DU BB RIEEBHORE - HFMER
/£84,260,000% 7T © AR RIEER T TIRED)
#)EE42,130,0003 7T (49 AR #5300,060,000
TT) o AAFEF+D A E D SR M
EARZ50% °

BHERTRIEEN_ETENFNAKY £ Z
REHER TR RENTERABEZT I -
H3FMEARA20,900,000E 7T - AR T AE

A AT 858554 10,450,000FE T (AR
6&57&000nﬁ

BECEUREMEMNAEEERECHER
EREMAEERRNENREZIERR
i o

REERZMBEHETE
AEEZRECE ZWHERRREIILT -

TP BERGREZBRERIEE BN oS R
REzAELENBRRAZIN 22 -

5

=T

%

HEHE

MG HRR N A RS

R 1>

Sale of Isuzu brand
automobiles and
autoparts

Qingling Isuzu Engine was established in May 2007, and is principally
engaged in manufacture of engines and relevant parts. The registered
capital is US$84,260,000, and the Company contributed US$42,130,000,
approximately RMB300,060,000 to Qingling Isuzu Engine. Each of
the Company and Isuzu held 50% of its paid-up registered capital
respectively.

Qingling Isuzu Sales was established in September 2008, and is
principally engaged in selling Isuzu brand automobiles and autoparts.
The registered capital is US$20,900,000, and the Company contributed
US$10,450,000, approximately RMB68,579,000, to Qingling Isuzu Sales.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or
advances made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s joint
ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.
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BHE2—F—+F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20. REELEZHEE () 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
BRI TERER Qingling Isuzu Engine

RIB—tE R-_TRF
+ZRA=+—H +-A=+—H

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MEEE Current assets 787,244 868,369
JEMBNEE Non-current assets 225,340 202,358
mEAE Current liabilities (126,888) (230,066)
EmBAE Non-current liabilities - -
BEFE Net assets 885,696 840,661
T EEREESEREUTEE The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
Re MRS EFEEY Cash and cash equivalents 319,212 233,180
nBERE BT EEEMNERERR Current financial liabilities (excluding
H AT FRIE R ) trade and other payables and
provision) - -
BE HE
—B—t%F “TREF
+=-A=+—H ‘I'fﬂ_‘l' =]
ILEE WFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AB¥TFTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
e Revenue 1,195,154 1,080,650
FRa | LR e W85 Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 45,035 38,788
BERA TREFRBENRE Dividend received from
Qingling Isuzu Engine - 10,353
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BZ_FE—t+FF+_HA=1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2017

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Qingling Isuzu Engine (Continued)

The above profit for the year include the following:

#BE HE

:g_t$ i /\¢

+=ZB=+-H +=A=+—H

ILEE IHFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AREFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

IE R Depreciation and amortisation 26,555 11,200
FEWA Interest income 21,015 11,793
FTefi b Income tax expense 7,955 6,845

£ 2 M FSE BRI AR & B T TR R Y
RERT THREB MRS 2 REENHR

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Engine recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

R-E—tF RZE—RF

+ZA=+—-B +=ZA=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARYTFIT AREFT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

BIRATIREBI s EEFE Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Engine 885,696 840,661

AEERER T TR EAERERLLD

FLRBIR S A 2 T2
REBRERT T BB e RE(E

Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest in Qingling Isuzu Engine 50% 50%

Adjustments for unrealised profit (2,228) (2,228)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Qingling Isuzu Engine 440,620 418,102
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BHE2—F—+F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20. REERRZHER ()
LEE R ]

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Qingling Isuzu Sales

R-E—tF RZTE—RF
+ZA=+—B +=ZA=1+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABREFT AREFor
RMB’000 RMB'000
MENEE Current assets 188,078 151,008
JEMBNEE Non-current assets 8,301 7,738
MEAE Current liabilities (80,703) (35,256)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities - -
BEFE Net assets 115,676 123,490
L EERBESBRENTSE The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
ReRREFEY Cash and cash equivalents 140,096 136,828
mEEma BT EREENERR L Current financial liabilities (excluding
H AT FRIE R E) trade and other payables and
provision) - -
8= BHE
—E2—+f —T—REF
+=ZB=+—-H +=-A=+—H
ILEE IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AB¥TiT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Wz Revenue 53,973 56,398
FA(ER) R MR A s (2 ) 85 (Loss) profit and total comprehensive
income (expense) for the year (7,814) 350
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HE2—F—+F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Qingling Isuzu Sales (Continued)

The above (loss) profit for the year include the following:

#BE HE

:g_t$ i /\¢

+=ZB=+-H +=A=+—H

ILEE IHFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AREFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HE R Depreciation and amortisation 954 654
FEMA Interest income 3,651 549
FTefi b Income tax expense - -

Bl 2 I FSE BRI AR S B T R R Y
RERT THRIEERS 2 REENHER

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

R-E—tF RZE—RF
+ZA=+—-B +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B RTRIEE 2 EEFE Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Sales 115,676 123,490
REBERERATIRHEE 2 A ERERLY Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales 50% 50%
AR IR R EAES Adjustments for unrealised profit and
ZHHE others 323 323
REBERERATIRHEE 2 EEEAE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales 58,161 62,068
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BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2017

21. BRERREE 21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
INTAREBNAFECHERZ L BIRLERE The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
BERIEEZE) movements thereon during the current year:
FERARR: PE - BER e 30
HESR R i HEET
Impairment WiHESE  Impairment on Accrual for
loss on trade  Write-down of property, plant selling #zt
receivables inventories and equipment rebates Total
ANREFT ARETFTL AREFT AREFT ANREFT
RMB 000 AMB000 RAMB000 RMB’'000 RMB 000
RZT—RF At 1 January 2016
—H—H 331 13,285 128 - 13,744
PRE (IBR)FTA (Charge) credit to profit or loss 58 4,999 (38) 8,909 13,928
RZT—RF At 31 December 2016
+-A=+-H 389 18,284 90 8,909 27,672
PARE (BRI A (Charge) credit to profit or loss (262) 5,087 - (745) 4,080
RZT—+F At 31 December 2017
+-A=1+-H 127 23,371 90 8,164 31,752
22. &8 22. INVENTORIES

R=B—t&F R-TRF
+ZA=+—-R t-A=1—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AR®TFT AREFr

RMB’000 RMB'000

R Raw materials 447,870 328,865
EEE Work in progress 67,697 47,894
BURK i Finished goods 117,422 210,397
632,989 587,156

134 %R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



23. FEUIRR - Rt RIER R
fT&IR

RE IR - ANEE 2 AR S B At R UK
ENIENFIRIT

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ?#ﬁ% |§ﬁ ;E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZ_FE—t+FF+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's trade and other
receivables and prepayments are as follows:

R-E2—tF RZE—RF
+ZRZ+—R t-A=tF

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AREFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEMBR SRR BR S Trade receivables, less allowance for
doubtful debts 546,499 842,324
H bl sRIE Other receivables 11,117 12,473
TES A Prepayments 66,751 44,183
624,367 898,980

TEAZAMFINBR P 28] - ANEBFERINT
ERFP ERRFEBEERPNERARE - I
BESREREE - HEFNEENFTSEF
BEZIN -99%(ZF—XF : 99%) W K E|H
MoRE 2 FEUWBR REAEERA R RIAIINZE
EFREGTRRS a4 -

HEERZ FEERRIE6MEA -

Before accepting any new external customers, the Group uses an
external credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and assign credit limits thereto. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year.99% (2016: 99%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit
scoring attributable under the external credit scoring system used by the
Group.

The average credit period granted on sales of goods is from 3 to 6
months.
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BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

23. FEUIRR - Rt RIER R
{17 1A (#8)

RREIR - AREIRZHAAR 2 HR A
(AR R B HIRE) 272 YR
RREERR  BRESTAT

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the

respective revenue recognition dates, is as follows:

R_E—EF R ITRF

+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ABREFT AREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

3fE A AR Within 3 months 515,765 604,910
3Z61EA Between 3 to 6 months 5,709 209,001
21218AH Between 7 to 12 months 12,549 18,205
15824F Between 1 to 2 years 7,926 9,761
2F A E Over 2 years 4,550 447
546,499 842,324

PEREHIR - FEURER R « Eftb e UL 0B K FE
FUELHEERWEEF 2 ZEE S ME)
HEEMT

Included in the Group's trade and other receivables and prepayments
at the end of the reporting period are amounts due from related parties,

which are trade in nature, as follows:

RIB—tE HZZT—KF

+=ZRA=+-B +=ZA=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARBFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BiEE Qingling Group 441,966 598,869

EREENKHBAR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 14,533 20,850

RS R TR A Isuzu Qingling Engineering 83 =

B ATIRHE Qingling Isuzu Sales 34,805 18,317
AEREER (EE) T HER AR A+RER(ER) BT HHEERAT

([R+RERREZTEME] ("Isuzu Qingling Autoparts”,
B E R A R)) an associate of Qingling Group) 6,982 14,234
498,369 652,270

LA EWREET 2 IR AEERERE
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The above amounts due from related parties are unsecured and

interest-free.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, trade and other receivables of RMB605,000
(2016: RMB954,000) were denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY"), other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Included in prepayments is an amount of approximately RMB55,673,000
(2016: RMB36,653,000) related to the advance payment to independent
suppliers of steel.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB25,025,000 (2016: approximately
RMB28,413,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, of which
RMB11,398,000 (2016: approximately RMB14,312,000) is due from
subsidiaries of Qingling Group. The Group does not consider any risk on
subsequent collections, and all of these receivables are expected to be
settled in the coming year. The Group does not hold any collaterals over
these balances.

Aged analysis of trade receivables of the Group which are past due but
not impaired, net of allowances, is as follows:

R-E—+tF RZE—RF

+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARBTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

2y Overdue by:
126{E A 1 to 6 months 12,549 18,205
6IEAZE14F 6 months to 1 year 7,926 9,761
195 E Over 1 year 4,550 447
25,025 28,413
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23. BUIES: « HMEWKRIERHE 23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
fTRRIA (18) PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

RIEERST Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

ng_t$ \—i /\¢
+=A=t-B +-A=t-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARETFIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EXEEER Balance at beginning of the year 2,594 2,203
B ()RR E RS Impairment losses (reversed) recognised (1,749) 391
FREEH Balance at end of the year 845 2,594

RIEEH ABIESH A ARKES45,000T (= Allowance for doubtful debts are provided for individually impaired
— N ARBE2,594,0007T) BFE 2 FEI trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB845,000 (2016:

ER(ERE RS E8) o RMB2,594,000) which are in financial difficulties.
24. = 24. BILLS RECEIVABLE
REPEHIRK  AEFE 2 EIWEEEHS S0 At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills receivable of
T the Group is as follows:
R_E—tF —T—REF
+-A=+-H Jr_H,Jr =
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABHFIT AEHTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1ME A LA Within 1 month 504,532 434,349
12216 A Between 1 to 2 months 419,489 295,117
2Z3fE A Between 2 to 3 months 298,946 202,930
3Z6MEA Between 3 to 6 months 1,089,341 650,151
2,312,308 1,682,547

iR ER ARITAGES - HEHIRE N All the above bills receivable are guaranteed by banks and their maturity
BAR - dates are within 6 months.
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25. REAREE=BERAZRITHE
=

RITFERNIEI2EARIEP(ZT—RFE
+-A=+—8: A3E24AA)  MiER2
FEFENTF1.60%E4.50%(ZF—F+=
A=+—H :1.55%%3.60%) - R=F—X
F+ - B=+—BZZERTEFR @%%E@%
B AR#786,882,000TTHFR » ZEREE
HARES ERHENRARITET R - AR
RIZEERA  ZEEFKRFESERBIHRA
HOTAE TAECER R MSHAE BT FRE
DT FEERBREZ  BEAABEITTEK -

R-ZE—+tHF+_A=+—"H AR¥
5,554,0007t (ZZF— /X4 : AR¥5,896,000
T0) ZRITFERIAET(ET)IIE -

26. ZMRFBPITHR RITER
HMITIHEERE S

HMITHER BITRBREASR

RITTERMIRTTE R F R X ¥OMM%
F4.8%(ZFT—NF : oomn%iss%) i
_z NETZ A=+ —HZERITEE &ﬁ
THEHEERMELNAARE62,175,0007T
mﬂﬁfm %Tﬁéﬁﬁﬁxﬁéﬁﬁaﬁ
E’]ﬁf’\ﬁt?ﬁilﬂ K jé%nuﬁ ux—r,\
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BERARBEITTEK -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

25. BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY
MORE THAN THREE MONTHS

The bank deposits are with a term from 3 to 12 months (31 December
2016: from 3 to 24 months) and carry interest at rates ranging from
1.60% to 4.50% (31 December 2016: from 1.55% to 3.60%) per annum.
Included in these bank deposits as at 31 December 2016 were deposits
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB786,882,000 which had
embedded derivatives relating to future gold prices. In the opinion
of directors of the Company, these embedded derivatives relating to
future gold prices were not closely related to the economic risks and
characteristics of the bank deposits contracts and had immaterial fair
value.

As at 31 December 2017, the bank deposits of RMB5,554,000 (2016:
RMB5,896,000) were denominated in United Stated Dollar (“USD").

26. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES, BANK
DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank deposits, bank balances and cash

Bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at rates ranging from
0.0001% to 4.8% (2016: 0.0001% to 3.6%) per annum. Included in
these bank deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2016 were
bank deposits with a carrying amount of approximately RMB962,175,000
which had embedded derivatives relating to future gold prices. In the
opinion of directors of the Company, these embedded derivatives relating
to future gold prices were not closely related to the economic risks and
characteristics of the bank deposits contracts and had immaterial fair
value.
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26. ZMRFIBITHER RITER
HITHERRA S ()

|ITHER  RITERRA R R)

26. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES, BANK
DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH

(CONTINUED)

Bank deposits, bank balances and cash (Continued)

AR B E R B LAINEESIER IR The bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other
THBERRSHIWT than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

A_EB—LHE “T—RE

+=ZA=+—H ‘I‘fﬂ_‘l' B

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AREFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AE JPY 721 2,733

ET usD 2,621 1,291

BT European Dollar (“EUR") 15 14

BT Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 50 55

e Great Britain Pound (“GBP") 3 3

3,410 4,096

SREISBITEER Restricted bank balances

BRERSRITEGBERE iR EENESHT The balances have been frozen since 16 August 2015 according to the

E8-TAF/N\ATANBRRE - TR —
FARAFFPE-FERITRFTNERERER
WAL o BREFHIFHNIFESS(a) °
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civil ruling issued by a court in relation to a dispute in respect of a financial
credit agreement entered into between the Company’s customer and a

bank. Details of which are set out in note 35 (a).
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27. BAER  BAREBEREME 27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

ISR
REBEHANAK - AEEEREAEES « JEA =S At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade, bills and other
RE M A SR T payables are as follows:

:g_t$ \ 7 /\:E'E

+ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARYTFIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEATER IR R BT R Trade and bills payables 1,883,428 1,361,835

JERTSHEE A Selling expenses payables 172,476 151,781

FERT IR ERD Value added tax payables 30,943 32,549

H b fE N FUE Other payables 181,284 196,456

TR R F R IE Advances from customers 463,805 487,340

2,731,936 2,229,961

RNIREHREAR » NEE 7 BN EER RENEE At the end of the reporting period, the age of trade and bills payables of

BEESIN T - the Group is as follows:
N_E—tF ATB—REF
+=ZRA=+—HB +=-A=t+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
AB¥TiT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
3EAUR Within 3 months 1,692,716 1,210,083
3%6fEA Between 3 to 6 months 182,545 144,729
7£21218 A Between 7 to 12 months 2,498 635
1218 A A E Over 12 months 5,669 6,388
1,883,428 1,361,835
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27. BfR®R - EREREME
18 IR (&)

RIEIHIR - BNRRR - BANREREME
RS BREENETFIRNT

27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

Included in the balance of trade, bills and other payables at the end of the
reporting period are amounts due to related parties as follows:

RIZB—tE R-TRF
+=ZRA=+—R +t-A=1—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARYFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

A+ Isuzu 98,004 103,320
B A TR a Qingling Isuzu Engine 71,919 -
EREENMEA Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 56,386 46,153
R HRERT M Qingling Isuzu Autoparts 2,815 -
EREE Qingling Group - 673
229,124 150,146

PRFRARBZMUE - BER 28 KEY
HeEEHA3E6MEA -

RIS BIEAR - FARCE PR SRR e R LR
HEEHE MTEARTET M REMFUERZ 8
WRIE o

RiREEHIR - AR#98,582,000L(=F

—NEE 0 ARM103,912,0007T) 2 FERTBR R
b ZIE B ERE -
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These amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and the
credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.

The balance of advances from customers at the end of the reporting
period represents the amount received in advance for the subsequent
sales of trucks and vehicles and automobile parts and accessories.

At the end of the reporting period, trade and other payables amounted to
RMB98,582,000 (2016: RMB103,912,000) are denominated in JPY.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

R-E—X"E—A—H"
—E—RE+=-A=1+—HER
—Z2—+t&+-A=+—H
At 1 January 2016,

31 December 2016 and

31 December 2017
AREFr

RMB’000

- EEITRER

Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

Bin&H

Number of shares
B-ZE—XE—A—H "
ZEZ—-RE+=ZA=1+—HER
—Z2—tF+-RA=+—H
At 1 January 2016,

31 December 2016 and

31 December 2017

FAE
‘000

FREEARB1 TG Shares of RMB1 each
— &K — Domestic shares 1,243,616
—Hi% —H shares 1,238,652
2,482,268

Wﬁﬂﬁt’ﬂﬂ Eh: o) Y9GS IEEHHEJZIE’U?ET

BIUARERE MRS A8 EE -
HHxﬁEP BB &,/ s B MR S ) B B8
AN LA TR RAARE AR SR
Y E A

NE MR KHR R ULE R & 7 Y= H R SE
o NERTPAIRNERBBARZMERAT R
HEE -

AARREM - EBTRARBRARMEAL
BREEH o

Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited as fully
paid up in RMB by the PRC government and/or entities established in the
PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for in HKD and credited as
fully paid up in RMB by persons other than the PRC government and/or
entities established in the PRC.

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
other. Domestic shares are not freely traded in The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.

B85 /AR A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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29. BREWA
BTN B BIRIR R BT B2 -

30. BFERETE

AEEERHES  URRAEENE R
ARHEEE - AR EREEERRRERA
RRE B o A R 5
T -

AEB 2 EARBEBEARREAR AEGER
(BREDEITEA - REEH REAMEHRE)

ARAEETHBEREARE - ERULERZ
—#fn - ARFREREZBEEHEANIERER
ZERKARRER - AREERIRNRE -
BATHAR D R IR BB - A REITHEERE
B3R A EEFEHEBEEARRE -
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29. DEFERRED REVENUE

The deferred revenue represents government grants subsidising the
Group's equipment for environmental protection.

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from time to
time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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eMTA 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) &MI AR (a) Categories of financial instruments
R-B—t%E RZZT—; \E
+ZA=+—-H +tZA=1—
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
%Eﬂﬁ% Financial assets
EBHREN T Loan and receivables
éj%}ﬂlﬂl Trade receivables 546,499 842,324
H o dRIE Other receivables 11,117 12,473
[EMEE Bills receivable 2,312,308 1,682,647
[REIEAEBB=E A 2 RITFER Bank deposits with original maturity more
than three months 1,343,202 3,050,884
SBHIERITES  RITER  RITEREBAS Restricted bank balances, bank deposits,
bank balances and cash 4,330,190 2,514,885
8,543,316 8,003,113
SRBE Financial liabilities
BERA Amortised cost
RN EE Trade and bills payables 1,883,428 1,361,835
[EREEER Selling expenses payables 172,476 151,781
Hitn R FIB Other payables 181,284 196,456
2,237,188 1,710,072

(b) SEERREEHRRBR

AEENTESRH T AERUERR N HAE
WA - fLISZmTF REEABB=EA 2R
ITER - BRBISRITAE SR « R1T1FaK » R1TAS
BRI\  BRNERRARENEE EMNEEE
BREMEMNTIE - 252 T ERNFBERE
BRNETEE - EBzEem T EEENER
BREMSRRFIXRREINERR) - FER
B NRENE AR o WALR A ZEREROBER
YN T - $EIE;TEZ§J—U$ME’3%£FIJZE
EENEZSRBZ HATEERES - &
BEEaEEEMEREZRK - BERERKE
WEITEE BIE °

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivable, bank deposits with original maturity more
than three months, restricted bank balances, bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables, selling expenses payables
and other payables. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
these risks or the manner in which it manages and measures these risks.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

B85 /AR A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd




146

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ |3ﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

&R T R (&)
(b) SBRPREE B MR B ()
TR
() SMEmS
REES AR ﬁﬁ%%ﬁz'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Rl - AEERANERBTE - St 58

FHET‘JM% ’JaéT/EPﬁI\/EH BB
FOREAERINERER ©

AT RAEERREARRAINSSHERFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk

(1) Currency risk

Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases, sales,
which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group considers the
currency risk insignificant and does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge against its exposure to currency risk. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign

currency rates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated

INVERG s B BEERERBECREE : monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency risk
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
BE aff
Assets Liabilities
RIE—tF RZE—RF R-Z—+t%F RZZ—RE
+ZB=+-H +=ZA=+—H +ZRA=t+-A +=ZA=+—H
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016
ABREFT ARETFT ARBTFT AREFT
RMB’000 AMB 000 RMB’000 RMB'000
e usD 8,175 7,187 - -
AE JPY 1,326 3,687 98,582 103,912
BT HKD 50 55 - -
BT EUR 15 14 - -
HgE GBP 3 3 - -
BRE DT Sensitivity analysis

AEEZEERRREAETRBEZEER
&) o SBEEE T « BUT R ESEFB R
EEKXR - MAREINAREEE T - BT ks
RIGRRRE DT ©

3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD and JPY.
The management assessed the risks of fluctuations in HKD, EUR and
GBP are insignificant and did not present the sensitivity analyses in the
RMB against HKD, EUR and GBP.
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(1) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase in the
exchange rate of RMB against USD and JPY. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in RMB
against USD and JPY. A (negative) positive number below indicates
(decrease) increase in post-tax profit for the year, respectively, where the
RMB strengthen 5% against USD and JPY. For a 5% weakening of the
RMB against USD and JPY, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the post-tax profit for the year.

S BHE

—E—tF TE-RF

+ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H

j12:3: 5 IHFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

ARETFIT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

B Profit or loss

ETT usD (347) (305)
H JPY 4,133 4,260

(i) FIEE

RERE R A BRI R 1725 SR B i A R
SRR REIE A BB =8 A 2 SR1TTF /B R -

FEEZREREN RS T EEPRERE
BI%F B Z RITHEBRRIRITIFRELEZTF
BN FRE

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest risk relates preliminary to bank deposits
with original maturity more than three months carried at fixed interest

rates.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of deposit interest rate arising from the Group's bank balances

and bank deposits carried at variable rate.
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&R T R (&)
(b) SBRPREE B MR B ()
w48 g ()
(i) FIF R ()
BRE AT

MT@*E AT TR RS B AR IR E T

RANRIEZ IRITERRBEMET - FIE EFH
TW§ﬁ025%C_? N 1 0.25%) hAIEE
EEABERIREFERRERA - WREK
EEEYA RSB REEE) 2T -

ﬁﬁfiﬂ/hﬁom%ﬂﬁﬁﬁMQéﬁh

 AEBREE T —+tF+_A=1+—
Htiﬁth&mﬂT g, R HAR
#6,968,0007T(— T —7<4F - #1, RDAR
#5,174,0007T) © F EHNAEBREHEIRITHE
4 7 FIREBETER o

EEmEE

RIE—tF+-A=+—H GEUZKRR
RIYIBHCHEREREEZEHEREEE
IX%QE* EETTEAMELMBEIEZ &
KEERRB

RREEERR  AEEEREDER—E)N
MEREEREERBLEEREN - EERER
PR B EIARN EETR o I - RIRE
HIER - AEE S HEREERNEZEENA]
WEEHE - AR AT SRR IEL R 5H)
MERIE - ENALEK - ARREFRRAE
SENEERRCBERD

RN ASE NS E SR ERES 2 EERA
ZEEEH ASEENR - BUEKEES ©F
ZIEERBRAER -
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate at the
end of the reporting period. 0.25% (2016: 0.25%) increase or decrease
in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.25% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2017 would increase/decrease by approximately RMB6,968,000 (2016:
increase/decrease by RMB5,174,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to interest rates on its bank balances.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position best represents the Group’'s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
perform an obligation by the counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debtors. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debtor at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on amounts due from related parties is limited because
the Group also periodically evaluated the related parties’ credit rating and
these related parties credit rating is high.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties, which have been disclosed in note 23 and the Group periodically
evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look for more
non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group does not
have significant concentration of credit risk on other trade and other
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter-parties and
customers. The credit risk on liquid fund which are deposited with several
banks is limited because the Group's bank deposits and bank balances
are deposited with authorised banks in the PRC with high credit-ratings.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on cash generated from
operating activities as a significant source of liquidity. Trade and bills
receivables can be received within six months based on the earliest date
on which the Group can require payments and bank balances can be
drawn on demand. The directors of the Company believe that the Group
will have sufficient funds available to meet its financial obligations in the
foreseeable future based on management working capital forecast.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.
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SR T R () 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) SREMFETEHBFERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
REELmE ) Liquidity risk (Continued)
E3 ik F#e
ReREls IREE
PR—@R 3ERAEIF Total Carrying
Less than 1E3fA 3 monthsto undiscounted amount at
1month  1-3 months 1year cash flows year end

AREFL  AREFL  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000

RZZ—tF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2017

ERERRENRE Trade and bills payables 966,252 596,100 321,076 1,883,428 1,883,428

[ERHEER RAMENTR Selling expenses payables and
other payables 225,086 71,024 57,650 353,760 353,760
1,191,338 667,124 378,726 2,237,188 2,237,188

RZE-R"F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2016

ERERRENRE Trade and bills payables 668,529 421,588 271,718 1,361,835 1,361,835

[T HEER R EMENTUR Selling expenses payables and
other payables 231,354 70,560 46,323 348,237 348,237
899,383 492,148 318,041 1,710,072 1,710,072

(c) 2REE (¢c) Fair values

rEBEEREERSRBEZARBEREA The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are
A EBEALERDITRR S REONE determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
E e on discounted cash flow analysis.

RABEERLS RSB RENITEIA The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of

IR SRMEERSREBECREAELER financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
AEEEE - consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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32. MEAXSH &g
A EE ST BB EE23 %27 -
KEER  AEBREETETTIRS -

() EERSEREMBATINIS

HE2—F—+F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 23 and 27.

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with
related parties:

(i)  Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

#BE Bz

—E—+tf —TRF

+=-B=+—-H +=ZAR=+—H

j12:3: 5 EFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

RHER Types of transactions 2017 2016

ABRETFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEERTERER Sales of chassis to Qingling Group 1,419,794 1,370,803
HERETHH REMT - Sales of automobile parts and others to:

-BEEREEERAB(EREE) - ERBRIEEAR AT ("Qingling Casting”) 26,894 33,634
-~ EREREBAERAR(ERERB) - EEERBBARAH ("Qingling Axle”) 10,866 25,989
—~EEERAZBRARAR(ERER]) - EEFRARERERAR

("Qingling Chair") 9,955 9,446

—EEERAERETIRERAT(ERER]) -EEERAEERSDAERAR
("Qingling Chassis") 3,512 3,917
—EREREBRAR(EERE]D - BEERBIESBRLE (“Qingling Forging”) 3,343 6,381

- EEEREAAEBRAA(ERZA) - BERRERREFRAT
("Qingling Zhuan Yong") 3,184 10,504
—BEERAEENTRZEERAR(EEM) -ERERAERNSRREERAR
("Qingling Jijia") 1,256 1,215
EERBIRARAR(EREE]) - BEEERFMARAF ("Qingling Cast

Aluminium”) 1,220 1,239
—ERERENARAR(EREM]) - BEERBRAERAF ("Qingling Plastics”) 724 949
—-EREE - Qingling Group 6 7
60,960 93,181

R HRE Purchases of automobile parts from:
—BRER - Qingling Axle 393,142 380,091
—ERER - Qingling Plastics 62,314 55,038
—BRER - Qingling Chair 55,096 49,808
—BRIE - Qingling Forging 35,277 32,360
—EREE - Qingling Casting 25,040 20,391
—BiRER - Qingling Cast Aluminium 9,289 8,125
-BERES - Qingling Chassis 4,431 3,357
—ERER - Qingling Zhuan Yong 3,899 6,323
— B - Qingling Jijia 2,396 4,644

- BEEREHPMBEEARAR(ERERHDR) - EEERERDnEEERAR
("Qingling Vehicle Parts”) 934 -
—EREE - Qingling Group - 25
591,818 560,162
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32. AERRH HEeR(|@ 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(i) HERFEREMEATNRSGR) (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Continued)
#BE BHE
:g_‘t$ -z /\$
+=B=+—-B +ZA=1—H
ILFE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
ZRER Types of transactions 2017 2016
AR#FIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MErEHESIHT Rental expenses for renting warehouse:
-BREH - Qingling Group 8,114 8,359
MEFREEE S Rental expenses for renting equipment:
—BERBE - Qingling Forging 19,974 19,974
-BREH - Qingling Group 867 843
REEZH - Service fee expense:
-EBEREE - Qingling Group 3,916 4,047
MHETEETH Rental expense for renting land:
—EieiE - Qingling Forging - 522
HAEHESWA Rental income:
—BRRE - Qingling Forging 180 -
HE WA Rental income from leasing equipment:
—BREE - Qingling Axle 521 864
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

(ii) Transactions with Isuzu

I ES BHE
—2—t&§ —ZT—REF
+ZRA=+—-B +tZA=+—~H
ILFE IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
ZRER Types of transactions 2017 2016
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE BT R Purchases of automobile parts and
components 544,446 724,409
HEERT I R EMTES 4 R BT Sales of accessory sets and other
automobile parts and components 3,104 1,932
Wi ER A E Acquisition of intangible assets - 130,010
HERERHMEREENERERIERE Royalties and license fee paid on sales
of trucks and other vehicles 17,368 18,658
BHEEER Marketing fee received 2,858 14,353
HEER Research expenses 2,577 -
(i) RERI+RVDR/OZH (i) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine
BE BHE
:%—-I:SF -z /\¢
+=ZB=+—-B +=-A=1+—H
ILFE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
RREE Types of transactions 2017 2016
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEREZBHREME Purchases of automobile parts and
raw materials 1,188,106 1,065,647
HE BT REME Sales of automobile parts and
raw materials 628,635 871,956
AR WA Rental income from leasing
equipment 39,120 37588
MR EME 2 WA Rental income for investment
properties 4,234 3,649
FERRBUA Experiment service income 1,287 -
HIERBBA Miscellaneous service income 991 1,161
BIEITWA Collaborative processing income 16 -~
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32. AERRH HEeR(|@ 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(iv) RERE+RAEHZH (iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales
#BE BHE
:g_‘t$ -z /\$
+=B=+—-B +ZA=1—H
ILFE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
ZRER Types of transactions 2017 2016
ARETFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HERERAETE M Sales of trucks and automobile parts 57,166 32,482
MR EE 2 WA Rental income from investment properties 1,541 1,647
HIERBBA Miscellaneous service income 472 481
BERETIMMN Purchase of autoparts - 438
(v) BRE+REREEARIS (v) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering
I ES BHE
:g_‘t$ -z /\¢
+=B=+—-B +ZA=1+—H
ILEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
RRER Types of transactions 2017 2016
ARETFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HIERBA Miscellaneous service income 1,040 686
MR EmE 2 WA Rental income for investment properties 438 880
HESESHREMR Sales of automobile parts and raw materials 6 -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(vi) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts

#BE BHE

—E—+f —ZT—REF

+=B=+—-B +ZA=1—H

ILFE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

ZRER Types of transactions 2017 2016
ARETFIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEREZE M RIRME Sales of automobile parts and raw materials 125,402 64,973
HIERBHA Miscellaneous service income 1,013 1,019
BERETIMT Purchase of autoparts 2,815 780
MRBREREER Reimbursed expense for logistical packaging 10 -

J:téﬁ@ﬁ?_ﬁﬁﬁﬁ*&%m%ﬁiiﬁiﬁﬁlﬁ1 ANE

WEER S RIFEMER S - BRI E
N EMEFETT ©

(vii) RPEEMBFERARRENHZS, &

AEEEERBHEERE B EEXZPRIR
FEE SRR EGRES - HRZEHREAY

EMER(BUTHEREER J)E’J?E% [ N
EI$%%¢IE&ZHT HH B i R EH TR

REE)—EBD o B EX()ERFTIRER B 5%
;’%&EW% RAETTHR ZO - AEE TR

HiBFEEERAERHER - ARRIEER
A AR EEZER AR ERITEITHE
BRHME  %ERAHEEERERNELFE =
AL

The above transactions with related parties also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are conducted in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreements.

(vii) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities
in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the PRC government (“government-related
entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under Qingling Group which is controlled by the PRC
government. Apart from the transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above, the Group also conducts
businesses with other government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group's business transactions with them are
concerned.

B85 /AR A AR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

155



156

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ |3ﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

32. EFXH, e (HE)

(vii) RAEAMBFERERNZS iR
(€ ))

H BT EEERNERRZ S, ERIAT

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(vii) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities
in the PRC (Continued)

Material transactions/balances with other government-related entities are
as follow:

S BHE

—2—t&§ —E-RF

+ZA=+-B +ZA=+—H

j12:3: 5 IHFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

AREFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BoHE Trade sales 465,939 437,688
B S 5RHE Trade purchases 164,597 176,432

R-B—tE H-TSE
+=A=t+-B +-A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABRETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R EMBRNEEERNE S ket Trade and other balances due to

other government-related entities 64,990 53,741

EWEMBTHRBEENE S Rk LS Trade and other balances due from
other government-related entities 272,325 150,789

BEAN - ARER B EEFHBRT RE TBBA
HEAERNRIT IV BRBETEZERS 8
ERRRE R EBASNTRIE A 7
AR E M —ARIRTT B E BRTS © %F&tﬁfﬁ"
RHOMNE - AAREERRIELERIKE

B EXFIEESN  AAREERR - BBF
HERERETHORZUARBENERM =L
EX-
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In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions, including
utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the PRC government,
and deposits and other general banking facilities with certain banks
and financial institutions which are government-related entities in their
ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of these banking
transactions, the directors of Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure is not meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not
significant to the Group's operations.
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)
(viii) EE  -EERFEEEBABZHM (viii) Compensation of directors, supervisors and key management
personnel
FANEE EZNEMTEEREAS ZHMEW The remuneration of directors, supervisors and other members of key
T management during the year are as follows:
S BHE
—2—t&§ —ZT—REF
+ZRA=+—-B +tZA=+—~H
j12:3: 5 IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
KEEER Short-term benefits 3,951 3,402
REREN Post-employment benefits 487 122
4,438 3,624
33. ik 33. COMMITMENTS
REREEIR - REB 7 EAEENT - At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital
commitments:
RZE—EE PRI F
+=ZB=+-H +=—A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BREARR A TR B BN E AARE - Contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial
statements in respect of:
— BB E « BB KRR — acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 33,860 13,268
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34. BEHE 34. OPERATING LEASES
SEEESEREA The Group as lessee

FASRAE HIHAS - 7N MARIETA L T HARS B > At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
/_l\ﬂ}fﬁﬁl‘liﬁ/@%ﬁ*ﬁ%’\]ﬁﬁ, BAEEM R R R RS minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which

ZEMT fall due as follows:
EpsEm With Qingling Group
ﬁgzg_tﬁ < —Z— \$
+=B=+—-H +ZA=1+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABR¥TFIT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
1R Within one year 10,021 10,021
B2FEELF (BRIEEEME) In the second to fifth year inclusive 10,021 20,042
20,042 30,063
HESHE With Qingling Forging
RIB—tFE RZRF
+=A=+-B +-A=t-*H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFIT ANEETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within one year 23,370 23,370
F2FEFESF (BEEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 23,370 46,470
46,740 69,840
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34. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

EEEES KB () The Group as lessee (Continued)
ﬁgﬂ#‘f With other landlords
:g_t$ \ 7 /\:E'E
+ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARYTFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
15K Within one year 621 2,249
F2FZEEF (REERMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 414 270
1,035 2,519

REHESREAEBRAEETREREE
wEXNOEE  HYEHAEA—FE=
o

FEREMESHEA
RIREHHIR - NEBE BB 3 RAETF A

RAEEREZ RRRERENEEA DL
T

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its warehouses and production facilities. Leases are negotiated

for term of one to three years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments in respect of land and

buildings and production facilities:

HE A 820 With Qingling Isuzu Engine
R_B—tFE PN ZITF
+ZA=+-B +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFIT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
1A Within one year 50,401 50,470
F2FEFESF (BEEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 48,610 99,011
99,011 149,481
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34. EEHRGE)

34. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as lessor (Continued)

EREEHHBAGR)
EES TSN With Qingling Isuzu Sales
R_B—tFE PN F
+=-B=+-H +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
15K Within one year 1,710 1,710
F2FZEEF (REERMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,710 3,420
3,420 5,130
HEREE With Qingling Axle
R-S—tF HNZZT—FRF
+=-A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT AREFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
16/ Within one year 510 -
F2FZELF(REERMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 300 -
810 -
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34. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

EEEESHBA (&) The Group as lessor (Continued)
HEF B iEs With Isuzu Qingling Engineering
R-E2—tF RZE—RF
+ZA=+—-B +tZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARYTFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
15K Within one year 972 1,212
F2FZEEF (REERMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 972 2,424
1,944 3,636

B LA 4R EESD -

REERREHIARGLEH

MWIRBE T IEME - BE RRELIEE DR
MR ERE 2 R RARTHE ST RSE -

35. EXFIRER

73./\_

—tF+-HA=+—8  RAREHLHR

HERFHRERMT

(a)

RFERYITRARARZER((EHRZE
RDEHMRERTE DR —FA
NEBE(ZERP]  BBMYKRARR)
H BIN—FIRIT(ERITAD BT S R E
HERMAE » REBOIRITEBAR
#79,999,000tE = —RHAFNA+
BR4E -

ARRR-_ZE—RENA=-TILBR=
T-RE+AZ+=-R  SRIEREE
BHZERPR - ZE—RFAA-THEER
—E-RAF+A+NBATFHHNEE A
ABBRITAERRE  REEZERRAE
BB RARRERBHERLAR
BF(ZZ—AFFA) -

Other than the above, the Group does not have any other commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases of property, plant and equipment and investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.

35. MATERIAL LITIGATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has involved in two material legal
proceedings as follows:

(@) According to the civil ruling issued by YT @M R A RZER
(transliterated as People’'s Court of Futian District, Shenzhen) (the
“Futian Court”) in relation to a dispute in respect of a financial
credit agreement entered into between the Company’s customer
(the "Customer”, who is independent to the Company) and another
bank (“Bank A"), the Group's bank balances of RMB79,999,000
have been frozen since 16 August 2015.

On 29 September 2015 and 22 October 2015, the Company
formally received summons sent by the Futian Court on 25
September 2015 and 19 October 2015, respectively, and pursuant
to which Bank A, as the plaintiff, has initiated legal proceedings
against six defendants including the Customer and the Company
(the “2015 Litigation”) in the Futian Court.
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35.

E X EINGR)

(&)

R_ZE—RFEFAPF - RITABEZE

FRKREREREH RANREMEE
MRES  BREZREHENENS
% RITATBHERZBEFRAFE
BRIFEEBE N 22 3R1E « R1TAE—
FIRBARARBRAEER - HZEF
EXNEEERBTHHRIZEEER
BHERITABENEE  ERBAR
W - AREER B REEESR
BEME - RITABRRPAREREY
W O #REEE A AR S 0008 7T ©

RZZE—RF=ZA - FIlmERARE
B (RIIEBT D) x,\?.%t;t f—ﬂiéﬁ
AR ﬂ‘bﬁﬁ?ﬁgg —~Ft
A fEﬁAH?JﬁEA ﬁﬁuﬁ"&ﬁ'ﬁ&
NEET _1(f _TXJ> FINE
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ARBR 7X°
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‘Whﬁ& —RFRARNEE
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ﬁ“ FYERT R EERE ﬁxﬁﬁm
LﬁﬂM EERTFEATH - Bis
AUBRENIERBR - —RFEFN
HMABERNEE °

AREMRE T AR - —RFHRAE
XA R - RiEHBUAZERA
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35.

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

(Continued)

In the 2015 Litigation, Bank A alleged that the Customer has
failed to meet the margin calls according to the requirements
under a credit agreement, constituting an event of default of
such agreement. Bank A is also entitled to demand the Customer
to prematurely repay all the amount granted under the relevant
credit facilities. Bank A further alleged that the Company did not,
as instructed by the Bank A, deliver the vehicles that had not
been picked up but paid by the Customer in full with loan to the
warehouse as specified by Bank A, leading to a breach of the
relevant credit agreement, and should be jointly and severally liable
to compensate for the losses it suffered. Bank A stated that the
outstanding credit balances due from the Customer was RMB80
million in aggregate.

In March 20186, a final ruling from J&3I[T & A R %Rt (transliterated
as Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court) (the “Shenzhen Court”)
that the 2015 Litigation is under the jurisdiction of the Shenzhen
Court was received. In July 2016, Bank A assigned its right to
the 2015 Litigation to another company (“Company X") and the
Shenzhen Court ruled that the plaintiff of the 2015 Litigation was
changed from Bank A to Company X.

In October 2017, the Shenzhen Court ruled that since Company X
had transferred its claims in the 2015 Litigation to another company
(“Company Y"), the replacement of Company X by Company Y
as the plaintiff of the 2015 Litigation was approved. In December
2017, the 2015 Litigation was heard in the Shenzhen Court.
However, the parties failed to settle through mediation and the
court decided that it would set a date to hand down judgment. The
2015 Litigation is still pending a formal judgment up to the approval
date of the consolidated financial statements.

The Company reviewed all the relevant documents and agreements
in relation to the 2015 Litigation and based on the opinion of its
PRC legal adviser, the directors of the Company are of the view
that the alleged liability in the litigation document lacks of factual
and legal evidence and therefore the Company shall not be liable.
Accordingly, no provision for the frozen bank balances has been
made in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

On 29 August 2016, the board of directors of the Company (the
"Board") received a notice of payment from a bank (“Bank B") to
the Company dated 23 August 2016, demanding, pursuant to the
provisions of a tripartite cooperation agreement (the “Agreement”)
entered into among the Company, Bank B and a distributor of
the Company (the “Distributor”), the Company to be liable for
the repayment of an outstanding bank loan of the Distributor
falling due as at 23 August 2016 in the amount of approximately
RMB14,370,000.

The terms of the Agreement stated that Bank B agreed to grant
the Distributor a loan facility of RMB75,000,000 and the Company
should pay for the shortfall payment as requested by the notice
of payment from Bank B when the guarantee deposited by the
Distributor was insufficient.

Subsequently on 26 October 2016, the Company formally received
a summon and a notice of respondence to action issued by &9
TR A A RJEBT (transliterated as Intermediate People’s Court of
Xiamen) (the “Xiamen Court"”) dated 19 October 2016 and a civil
complaint from Bank B dated 7 September 2016 in relation to
Bank B, as a plaintiff, having initiated legal proceedings (the “2016
Litigation”) against six defendants including the Distributor and the
Company in the Xiamen Court.

In the 2016 Litigation, Bank B sued the Distributor for being
unable to pay the deposit in full in accordance with the provisions
of the Agreement which constituted an event of default of the
Agreement. Bank B requested an immediate repayment of the
advances, borrowings and any interests up to the date of actual
repayment from the Distributor which amounted to approximately
RMB19,680,000 in total up to 6 September 2016. Bank B further
sued the Company for not complying with the provisions of the
Agreement that it was liable for repaying the shortfall payment,
which constituted a breach of the Agreement, and the Company
shall have joint liability for the payment and the settlement.
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35.

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

(Continued)

Later, on 11 November 2016, the Board received the second
notice of payment from Bank B to the Company dated 7
November 2016, demanding the Company to be liable for the
repayment of the outstanding bank loan of the Distributor falling
due as at 7 November 2016, together with that under the first
notice of payment, in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB39,330,000, and, in January 2017, the Board further received
the third notice of payment from Bank B to the Company dated
11 January 2017, demanding the Company to be liable for the
repayment of the outstanding bank loan of the Distributor falling
due as at 11 January 2017, together with those under the first
and second notice of payment, in an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB438,300,000.

Since the Company has never entered into the Agreement, on 29
September 2016, the Company reported the aforesaid incident
to EEMALZBNER D Bltransliterated as Jiulongpo branch of
Chongging Municipal Public Security Bureau). Jiulongpo branch of
Chongging Municipal Public Security Bureau has initiated formal
investigation.

In November 2016, an application of objection to the jurisdiction
has been filed by the Company to the Xiamen Court but was
overruled by the Xiamen Court. In December 2016, the Company
filed another application of objection to the jurisdiction to BEE &
M AR AP (transliterated as Fujian Higher People’s Court), but such
application was overruled by the Fujian Higher People’'s Court in
May 2017, which held that the 2016 Litigation remains to be heard
by the Xiamen Court.

In July 2017, the Company received a civil complaint from
the Xiamen Branch of Bank B after altering the litigation claim
requesting the Company to be jointly liable for the repayment
of borrowings of the Distributor and accrued interest thereon
amounting to approximately RMB54,018,000.

In July and August 2017, the 2016 Litigation was heard by the
Xiamen Court, existing evidence was examined and further
evidence was supplemented. The cross-examination and the court
debate have been completed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

(Continued)

The Board has reviewed all the relevant documents and contracts
in relation to the 2016 Litigation and after making verifications, the
Board finds that the Distributor engraved the seals of the Company
and the legal person without explicit approval, and entered into
the Agreement with Bank B. Based on the opinion of its PRC legal
adviser, the directors of the Company are of the view that the
Company is not legally bound by the Agreement because it did not
sign the Agreement, and therefore the Company should not be
liable.

In November 2017, the Xiamen court ruled that the seals in
relation to the Company affixed on the Agreement and the relevant
agreements thereunder are forged, and therefore it was suspected
that economic crime was involved in the 2016 Litigation and
the appeal of Bank B was dismissed. The 2016 Litigation was
transferred to Xiamen Public Security Bureau for investigation.

Up to the approval date of the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company are of the view that the Company
should not be held legally responsible in respect of the 2016
Litigation. Accordingly, no provision has been made in respect of
the claims under the 2016 Litigation in the consolidated financial
statements. The civil case concerning the 2016 Litigation had been
concluded, while the criminal investigation on the economic crime
involved is still pending a final conclusion.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

36. FAFMELTFFTE

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

RZE—+tF+_A=+—HEZZE—<F Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 and 31
+ZA=1+—8  ARFHNKRBARFEN December 2016 are as follows:
T
FAFEERAN
ERREEER REERES gMEx BREREENEAL
ELEBE Country of registration ~ Form of business Registered  Proportion of ownership interests EEEH
Name of subsidiary and operation structure capital directly held by the Company Principal activities
:g_t$ — : /\i
2017 2016
BRER e BalizAv 38,166,6005 T 50.56% 50.56%  AEZEAEHIMER
Qingling Moulds The PRC Incorporated US$38,166,600 50.56% 50.56%  Production of moulds
for the manufacture
of automobile parts
BRI L e AL 29,980,003 7T 51.00% 51.00%  HARFRES
Qingling Technical Center The PRC Incorporated US$29,980,000 51.00% 51.00%  Not yet commenced
business

FRZEWNBRRLARETEMERE

TEMBARNREREMANERERE S
BEEFKANREBFNGENREZIEX
PR ©

3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

year.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of principal subsidiaries
to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans

or advances made by the Group.
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BZ_FE—t+FF+_HA=1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2017

36. FLTEMIE LTI (1) 36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

TR AEBHEEEAIFIERERNIEEE The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

M QTS Group that have material non-controlling interests:
FRRERKEZ
BEEERRRFEESL
Proportion ownership PEEFRRERNET RithRRER
HELRER interests and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
—5-t% ZERF —5-t% 2 Z-tf ZERF
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
% % ARBFT  ARETr  ARBFT  ARFFT
% % RMB000 RMB 000 RMB0000 RMB 000
BHEE
Qingling Moulds 49.44 49.44 4,743 3993 164,957 161,888
BREMRL
Qingling Technical Center 49.00 49.00 126 769 139,587 139,461
4,869 4,762 304,544 301,349
BRAANEEEES E AR ER 2 S B A Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group is
ZHBEREEST o L/(Tél\ﬁkéfﬂﬁ{x subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
IEEBANARIBEIHEAINESEE - The summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.
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BHE2—F—+F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

36. EAFIME L FFEGE) 36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
BREA Qingling Moulds
R-E—tFE HNZZT—RF
+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
MBEE Current assets 350,241 332,489
FRBEE Non-current assets 22,487 24,196
mEAE Current liabilities (34,615) (24,778)
KRR AELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 173,156 170,019
IR Non-controlling interests 164,957 161,888
8E HE
—2—tF —ERE
+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LEE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
s Revenue 59,797 64,102
53 Expense (50,203) (56,026)
FRaF Profit for the year 9,594 8,076
ARRRA NEIE R R A B0 Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the Company 4,851 4,083
FEE R e B (5 | AR B U Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests 4,743 81993
BT IEERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1,674 1,785
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HE2—F—+F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

36. EAFIME L FFEGE) 36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
BRER W@ Qingling Moulds (Continued)
BE HE
—Z—+tF —ERF
+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LLEE IFFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REER 7R (R RNFE Net cash (outflow) inflow from
operating activities (5,154) 76,924
RETH RETLFHR Net cash outflow from investing activities (57) (673)
METHIRETLFR Net cash outflow from financing activities (3,387) (3,499)
Re(RHE)RAFHE Net cash (outflow) inflow (8,598) 72,752
BEEHERO Qingling Technical Center
R-Z—tFE HZZT—RF
+=ZRA=+-B +ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mEBEE Current assets 284,871 284,812
mEAE Current liabilities - (198)
RAR)HEA AELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 145,284 145,153
RS Non-controlling interests 139,587 139,461
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BHE2—F—+F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

36. EAFIME L FFEGE) 36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Rl () Qingling Technical Center (Continued)
8E HE
—E—+f TR F
+=-B=+—-H +=ZRA=+—H
LLEE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEMA Interest income 373 2,132
% Expenses (116) (563)
FREF Profit for the year 257 1,569
ARRA NEIERF KA BIE Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the Company 131 800
FHERER R E M RAr A Bl Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests 126 769
EREERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - -
BE HE
—Z—+tF ZERF
+=RA=+-B +ZA=+—H
LLEE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
KA 2R RMANFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 395 1,497
REEB RS RAFHE Net cash inflow from investing activities = 387
BERNFE Net cash inflow 395 1,884

170 3% 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



37. MEEDFRELEARZAGER

TRHSIAREREEHHE LN ELHE
REERERIASEN)  MASHTES

.\m 7f ﬁi#ﬁﬁ |Zﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2—F—+F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

MEEERSREDNIARFBEREBRAK arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
SEGEREMERNDBEAMEZHRET future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement
EMEE - of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
e RS
Dividend st
payable Total
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
RZZ—tF—-HA—H At 1 January 2017 - -
MERSRE W) Financing cash flows (Note) (398,837) (398,837)
FRSEH : Non-cash changes:
EEIRRE Dividend declared 398,837 398,837
—tE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 - -

Wit : WREREBEEGERASRERNIIBEX
P AR RIR K — RS A B8 IR
RHBE -

Note: The cash flows represent dividend paid to shareholders of the Company
and a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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BZE_F—+F+_HA=1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2017

38. LT MIEHKNR B iR & 38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

R-B—tE  HoT-A%
+ZA=t-B f-A=t-d

At At
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
ABRYFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB 000
FnBBE Non-current assets
WE - BE R E Property, plant and equipment 743,029 718,872
BNREFE Prepaid lease payments 38,060 39,443
BEME Investment properties 30,917 32,932
%ﬁiﬁ?ﬁ% ) Intangible assets 215,327 241,762
RIEBRARZRE Investments in subsidiaries 285,073 285,073
REENE 7R E Investments in an associate 6,333 6,333
AA*”JE%Z&% Investments in joint ventures 368,639 368,639
ERETIRAE Deferred tax assets 31,752 27,671
1,719,130 1,720,725
/m@Jé? Current assets
Inventories 627,986 586,711
T WE N U IR A R TR 30 Trade and other receivables and prepayments 583,141 867,380
[ Z= R Bills receivables 2,282,642 1,572,250
Bt e Prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
[REERBB={A A ZBTER Bank deposits with original maturity more
B than three months 1,325,245 3,023,494
X BRI Restricted bank balances 79,999 79,999
FITER ?Eﬂ ERNRE Bank deposits, bank balances and cash 3,717,113 1,904,593
8,617,509 8,035,810
MEEE Current liabilities
JERERT - BITEE R H RN Trade, bills and other payables 2,695,846 2,212,045
WEafE Tax liabilities 20,127 6,299
2,715,973 2,218,344
nBEERE Net current assets 5,901,536 5,817,466
BEERTHEE Total assets less current liabilities 7,620,666 7,538,191
BARGE Capital and reserves
RS ) Share capital 2,482,268 2,482,268
AR (B R 1 Share premium and reserves 5,132,738 5,055,923
LR Total equity 7,615,006 7,638,191
FnBEE Non-current liability
EEWA Deferred revenue 5,660 -
7,620,666 7,538,191
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

38. FLTFIRAHHRN B &l & (1) 38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

ENFIREFRZET Movements in reserves of the Company
EENESE
BERE EXLES Statutory FERH
Share Capital surplus Retained 5t
premium reserve  reserve fund profits Total
ABEFT  AEEFT  AREFT  AREFTT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE—"F—-F—H At 1 January 2016 1,764,905 572,210 995,208 1,650,678 4,983,001
FRa T Rira allE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 470,085 470,085
FENE Appropriation for the year - - 47,951 (47,951) -
INZE-RFRERS 2015 final dividend paid - - - (397,163) (397,163)
RZE—RETZA=t—H At 31 December 2016 1,764,905 572,210 1,043,159 1,675,649 5,055,923
FERTI KA BN E Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 473,978 473,978
FEDE Appropriation for the year - - 49,280 (49,280) -
IRZB-"ERERE 2016 final dividend paid - - - (397,163) (397,163)
R-Z—tF¥+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2017 1,764,905 572,210 1,092,439 1,703,184 5,132,738
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEBREE — RETEMBREED Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

REXRE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BE+-_B=1+—HLEE
For the Year ended 31 December
2+t —TXF —T-HF —THmOF =—T—=F%
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ARBTFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

LON Revenue 5,073,336 4,633,785 5504296 5,800,078 5,782,887
BRE AT A Profit before tax 580,707 566,626 565,449 522,735 442,253
FTeRix Income tax expense (78,912) (80,577) (80,310) (74,037) (64,632)
F 5 Profit for the year 501,795 486,049 485,139 448,698 377,621
FEBN Attributable to:
RNFEREE A Owners of the Company 496,926 481,287 479,887 444,549 371,681
R Non-controlling interests 4,869 4,762 5,252 4,149 5,940

501,795 486,049 485,139 448,698 377,621

FEeMBERAE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

®+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December
ZE—+tE —T—RF —T-HF —T-NF —T—=F
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ABRBFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEE Total assets 10,821,989 10,197,850 10,210,173 10,180,560 9,830,454
HEE Total liabilities (2,759,142) (2,237,961) (2,337,385) (2,392,488) (2,163,579)
R Total equity 8,062,847 7,959,889 7,872,788 7,788,072 7,666,875
SEBR Attributable to:
RARERERA Owners of the Company 7,758,303 7,658,540 7,574,416 7,491,692 7,369,837
IR S Non-controlling interests 304,544 301,349 298,372 296,380 297,038

8,062,847 7,959,889 7,872,788 7,788,072 7,666,875
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FOR THE YEAR OF 2017

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company resolved
that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of 2017 be as

follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be:10%for
Statutory Reserve Fund * 0%for Statutory Public Benefit Fund (Note
1) and 90%for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO0.16 per share in cash (Note 2). Subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting, the
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of shareholders of the
Company on Tuesday, 12 June 2018. Further announcement will
be made as to the exact form of payment.

Notes: 1.

In accordance with the amendment to the Company Law of
PRC on 27 October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006,and
pursuant to the Company's articles of association and the
resolutions of the board of directors of the Company, the
Company decided not to accrue for Statutory Public Benefit
Fund from the year of 2006.

. According to the regulations of the Enterprise Income Tax

Law of the People's Republic of China, Implementation
Regulations on Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People's
Republic of China and the Notice of Withholding and Payment
of Enterprise Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise
Paying Dividend to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of
Overseas H Shares issued by China’'s State Administration of
Taxation(Guo Shui Han [2008]N0.897 on 6 November 2008),
any China resident enterprise which pays dividend to non-
resident enterprise holders of overseas H shares for the
year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax at a unified tax rate of 10%.

As stated above, in respect of any non-resident enterprise
holders of H Shares (including HKSCC Nominees Limited,
other custodians, corporate nominees and trustees such
as securities companies and banks, and other entities or
organizations)whose names appear on the Company'’s register
of shareholders on the Record Date of Dividend, the Company
will pay the 2017 final dividend payable to such shareholders
after deducting enterprise income tax payable from the 2017
final dividend.

In respect of any individual holders of H shares whose names
appear on the Company's register of shareholders on the
record date of dividend, the Company will not deduct the
enterprise income tax from the 2017 final dividend which such
shareholders have right to receive.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

23 March 2018
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3R 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting (the
“"AGM") of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company"”) will be held at
the New Conference Hall, 1st Floor of the Company’s Office Building, 1
Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") on Wednesday, 30 May 2018 at 10:00 a.m.
for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following
ordinary resolutions of the Company:

1. To consider and approve the report of the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board"”) for the year of 2017.

2. To consider and approve the report of the supervisory committee
of the Company for the year of 2017.

3. To consider and approve the audited financial statements and the
independent auditor’s report of the Company for the year of 2017.

4. To consider and approve the proposal for appropriation of profit of
the Company for the year of 2017.

By Order of the Board
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
Z0U Guanghua
Company Secretary

Chongaing, the PRC, 12 April 2018

Notes:

(1) Any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote at the AGM on his/her
behalf in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. A
proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

(2) In order to be valid, the proxy form and, if such proxy form is signed
by a person under a power of attorney or other authority on behalf of
the appointer, a notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or
authority shall be deposited at the legal address of the Company at 1
Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the PRC
(in the case of proxy form of holders of domestic shares) or at the
Company’'s H Share Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
(in the case of proxy form of holders of H shares) not less than 24 hours
before the time for holding the AGM (i.e. not later than 29 May 2018 at
10:00 a.m. (Hong Kong time)) or 24 hours before the time appointed for
taking the poll.
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Shareholders or their proxies shall produce their identity documents
when attending the AGM.

To ascertain the H shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of shareholders of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 30 April 2018 to Wednesday, 30 May 2018 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
All duly completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
H Share Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 27 April 2018.

Shareholders whose names appear on the register of shareholders of
the Company after the close of business at 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 27 April
2018 are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

Shareholders who intend to attend the AGM shall complete and lodge
the reply slip for attending the AGM at the Company’s legal address
at 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongqing,
the PRC on or before Thursday, 10 May 2018. The reply slip may be
delivered to the Company by hand, by post, by cable or by fax (at fax
no.: (86) 23-68830397).

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be payable to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of shareholders of the Company on Tuesday, 12 June
2018. To ascertain the H shareholders’ entitlement to the proposal final
dividend, the register of shareholders of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 5 June 2018 to Tuesday, 12 June 2018 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
All duly completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
H Share Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 4 June 2018.

The AGM is not expected to take more than half a day. Shareholders or
their proxies attending the AGM shall be responsible for their own travel
and accommodation expenses.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), all
votes of the shareholders at the meeting will be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by
a show of hands and the Company will announce the results of the poll
in the manner prescribed under rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 10 directors, of
which Mr. LUO Yuguang, Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI, Mr. Masanori OTA,
Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO, Mr. LI Juxing and Mr. XU Song are executive
directors and Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and
Mr. LIU Erh Fei are independent non-executive directors.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

Keiichiro MAEGAKI (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
Masanori OTA

Etsuo YAMAMOTO

LI Juxing

XU Song

Independent Non-executive Directors.
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

SUPERVISORS

GUAN Jinming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
MIN Qing

LEI Bin

COMPANY SECRETARY
responsible for PRC affairs: ZOU Guanghua
responsible for Hong Kong affairs: TUNG Tat Chiu Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE

SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LUO Yuguang

LONG Tao

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
LUO Yuguang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

CORPORATE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

LEGAL ADDRESS

1 Xiexing Cun

Zhongliangshan

Jiulongpo District

Chongaing

the People’'s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Office 1601, 16th Floor

LHT Tower,

31 Queen's Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

COMPANY’'S WEBSITE

www.gingling.com.cn

H SHARE REGISTRARS
Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

H SHARE LISTING PLACE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1122
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Huafu Road Branch
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EEE XS RTRIERAT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
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Beijing 100020
the People’'s Republic of China
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